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“] Thought You'd Like To hnow”

WHERE DID ELGIN GET IT§ NAME?

The recent finding of two tombstones buried
in the yard of an Elgin resident, investigation
following and the final clearing up of the mys-
tery brought to light interesting f.acts con-
‘cerning early Elgin history which might be of
interest to our Elgin readers and others,

Four men of Vermont, George and Curtis
Bryant, Henry Atherton and George Farrar
landed by steamboat at Winona, came up ac-
ross that country to what is now the village of
St. Charles and found their way to the bordex:s
of Greenwood Prairie. They planted their
stakes, gathered faggots from a nearby grove,
kindled a fire spread their blankets and laid
down to rest on the virgin soil of the beau-
tiful valley of the Whitewater with no trepida-
tion concerning wild beasls or prowling In-
dians

The little encampment was destined to
mark .the beginning of a settlement later
known as Elgin village.

The next day they proceeded to cut logs to
build a shelter for themselves. The days %ol-
lowing were busy ones for Lhese pioneering
men.  Geoorge DBryant returned. to Vermont
to bring back his family. Leonard Laird

and his family of Vermont came back with -

them. Mrs. Laird and Mrs. Bryant were the
first women in the settlement. Other settlers
came.

Henry Stanchfield, E. L. Clapp and -
their families and Wm. D. Woodward, John
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Bryant and his wife, parents of George and

. Curtis came along. Orvis and Irving Rollins

came from Plainview to join the settlers. .

The following year did much to satisfy the
high hopes of the pioneers, cabins were built
rapidly, shacks for cattle were put up. The

rich soil of the broad acres gave forth abun-
dantly.

The first log cabin, shingled in elm bark was
built by George Farrar in 1856 and became a
shelter or hotel for many settlers as well as a
home. In 1860 this tavern closed and Zebina
Weld built another hotel.

The pioneer folks called their little - settle-
ment “Paradise” because of the happiness
and opportunities they had found there. But
for many miles around the settlers referred
Lo the settlement as “Yankee Settlement.”

On May 11, 1858 a meeting was held at the
home of John Pell for the purpose of village
organization and election of officers and choos-
ing a name.

Each voter placed a name on the back of
his ticket. The whole number of votes cast
was b4 with 50 in favor of the name Elgin.
How the name happened to be suggested and
why is problematical. Research fails to re-
veal any information on why this name was
chosen. If anyone has any information con-
cerning the name we.would appreciate very

much if they would bring or mail it to the
News office. '
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“I Thought You'd Like To Know”

RAILROAD COMPANY GAVE KELLOGG

IT’S NAME '

The little neighboring village of Kellogg
had it’s beginning way back in 1870 when
John Huddleston came from New York and
built the first building. In 1871 Clement Brass
arrived and built a hotel and John Mealey, a
blacksmith shop. These pioneer gentlemenr
saw great possibilities in this rich and beauti-
ful farming -country and could forsee how it
could be developed into an important shipping
point.

The railroad they dreamed about came
and things began to happen in the little ham-
let. 1t rapidly became a shipping center for
grain, livestock and farm products for a large
territory to the southwest.
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A bank was organized by John Costello,
Linn Whitmore and Charles C. Hirshey. A
neswpaper called “The Enterprize” carried

the news of current happenings to the out-
side world. A.creamery, saw mill and grain
elevator were added to the other industrial
projects. _ ) ‘

The railroad company adopted the name
Kellogg in honor of Mr. Kellogg, a gentleman
from Milwaukee who provided the station
signs. The village likewise adopted the name.

In 1877 the village was incorporated.
Village officials elected were ' J. E. Gage,
Joseph Ginther, John Schouweiler, Calvin
Potter, E. A. Tupper, J. O. Junken and C. H.
Coleman. ) :
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The authentic facts of this story S T P N
were fold fo the writer by Mr. gt .
Ralph Read, a resident of Millville

Millville village, nestled down in the
picturesque Zumbro Valley aifords so much
of beauty and historical interest.

The story of ils beginning centers around
a pioncer gentleman Colonel Charles R. Reed,
father of Ralph Reod. With the decline of
Read’s Landing Cologel Read homesteaded
near Wabasha and engaged in the real estate
business, buying and selling land from the
Indians.

The rolling prairie of Oakwood township
was cut by the rocky cliffs of Zumbro Valley,
covered with oak, hazel, cottonwood and
maple. Before civilizalion began to rear this
wild, beauliful couniry these clilTs were dolted
with wigwams of the Sioux Indians of Wa-
pa-shaw’s tribes who came to hunt and make
their homes. Deer roamed in the gorges and
underbrush. Beavers made their homes in
waters of the creeks winding through the
valleys. Grey wolf and cunning fox prowled
about. Animals and Indians ran riot in these
hills.

In 1856 the ox team and covered wagon
came bringing  prospectors. Among these

earliest settlers were Matthew Kinsella and

son Matthew, David and Jaines FFoley, Patrick
and Lawrence Tracy, Henry Powell, Bernard
McNulty, James McPike, Michael Campbell,
Patrick McQuigan and sons John and James
Henry Martin, Patrick Flemming and John
Pell. The township was named Pell in honor
of the latter. Later the name was changed to
Sherman and finally to Oakwood, its present
name.

for over a half century. TINETRL (e v L

Mr. Read purchased a 160 acre tract of
land where the village of Millville now stands
from an Indian named -Joseph Labatte on
Seplember 15, 1857 for the sum of 400 dollars.
He hired Patrick Nolan, who lived about three
miles dislant to watch over his holdings.
dJames Nolan, son of Patrick Nolan now lives
on this farm. :

A post office was established at the home
of Ole Christopher in 1867 with Charles Read
.appointed postmaster, June 4, 1867 by post-
master general Alexander Randall. '

In 1870 John Huny opened the first store
and the post office moved to his store. J. B.
Miller and Mullen and Leonard opened stores.
John Belirns built the Midland .hotel. A wagon
shop, grain house, another hotel built by a
Mr. Plath, a depot, Peter Holteins blacksmith
shop and others were added.

The Minnesota Midland Railway came in
1878 giving new impetus to the Village.

A New York gentleman came prospect-
ing. He saw the possibilities the Zumbro river
afforded as a fine site for water power, just
waiting to be occupied and planned to build a
mill. The villagers in their enthusiasm nam-
ed the village Millvillee However the mill
never malerialized.

Charles Read built a home in Millville in
1895 which is now occupied by Charles Spring-
er. The old Midland hotel barn still stands and
is owned by Ralph Read, The Wadley home|
built by a blacksmith is occupied by Matthew
Wadley. Audersons log house of pioneer days
is now occupied by Alfred Bussa,
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“l Thought You'd Like To Knuw” |

“HOW THEILMAN GOT ITS’ NAME”

River country is ever fascinaling and beau-
Liful and especially so are Lhe valleys and
forests on the cliffs skirting the Zumbro
river on both sides. These clilfs tower to great

heights topped with trees that seem to lean
against the sky.

It was way back in 1856 Lhal pioneer men
found their way [rom Scolland, Germany and
Ireland to the hills of the Zumbro river valley.
William McCracken the first settler came
from Scotland. He was followed by Charles
Foreman, Hugh McGowen, Hugh and Robert
Cochrane, Fred Bernhart, Wm. Stowman,
Henry Smith, John and Wm. Cochrane, Hugh
McGinnis, The Ring brothers, Henry Ash,
J. B. Roane, and others who settled in the
valley and uplands and engaged in farming.
The soil was a blackish loam with clay sub-
soil which was very high in fertility. The
good earth gave forth abundantly. The pion-
cers built huts and sent for their families.
The epoch however is not entirely one of
prosperity. Many and irying were the hard-
ships enduring by those brave souls.

. . [ . .
The pioneers discovered a 15 acre plot of

ground called “Indian Field” where the In-
“ dians had buried their dead and used the Trest
“of the plot as a corn field. One could picture

these hill, dotled with wigwams, smoke pour-
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_ ing from the camp fires, fleet footed Indian

braves dashing through the thicket in search,
of deer. How the hills must have resounded
with Indian war whoops in those pre-civiliza-
tion days.

A township was established in 1855 and
was named Glasgow after Glasgow, Scotland.
The first post office was set up at the home
ol Boyd Fetzer who was made post master.
Llobert Cochrane and A. T. Lansing erected a
saw mill and ‘Herman Wing, a blacksmith
shop. The first white child was born to Mr.
and Mrs." Hugh McGowen. Both, Mother and
baby died.

Villages were established. McCracken vill-
age was named for the first settler, William
McCracken. '

In the southwest corner of the township,
Christian Theilman built a. huge grain house
in 1878 and began buying grain. The narrow
guage railroad was built and the Wabasha
clevator company put up an elevator with
William TForeman in charge. Peter Hall
built a two story house and stocked it
withh  general merchandise. Nicholas Reil
built a home, Henry Sommerhilder, a wagon
shop. A post office was established with Pet-

“er Hall its’ first post master. The wvillagers

chose the name Theilmanton for their village
in honor of Christian Theilman and the name
was later changed to Theilman.
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“I.Thnuth You'd Like To Enow”

HOW HAMMOND GOT IT°S NAME

The facts of this story were authenticated by
" Mrs. E. N. York, 93, and her son Walter, life long
residents of Hammond and by Mrs. Fred Ableitner a
resident of the village since 1902

The rich woodlands on the cliffs of the
‘Zumbro Valley, the rolling prairics wilh high
fertilily and the waler must have lured the
pioneers Lo the southerly bend of Lthe Zumbro
river. Many of Lhem camic from Germany.

In 1850 a pioncer named Lyman braved
this wild, beautiful counlry, built himself a
cabin near an easy ford of the Zumbro river
where the village of Hammond lies and en-
gaged in wood cutting. Others followed and
the little settlement was named Lyman’s Ford.

~ In 1856 Joseph Hammons settled in the
. valley and in 1857 Simon Garlitz came. Mr.
" Hammons built a house, moved his family into
it and stocked it with $300 worth of merchan-
dise. Thus began the first store in the hamlet
The Hammons home slill stands and is now
occupied by the Carl Theis family

The name of the village was -changed
from Lywman’s Ford to Hammon’s Ford.

In 1878 Anton Kruger and Michael Dos-
dall built the first ware house to take care of
- the bumper crop of 1877. In 1879 Mr. Kruger
determined that the village should be loeated
near his warehouse built & home there. Mrs.
Ferdinand Dickman of Hammond and Peler
Kruger of Plainview are grandchildren of An-
ton Kruger.
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Grading for the railroad was begun in
1877 and it opened for traffic in 1878. About
this time Lhe wooden bridge was built.

About this time Wilhelm Bartz opened
a hotel and the post office was established
there with Mr. Bartz as Postmaster. The hotel
was laler faken over by Charles Kruger as a
home. Mrs. Fred Ableitner, grandchild of|
Charles Kruger came there to live when i
young girl. '

In 1880 Mr. Hammons built a store and
rented it to Benjamin Young who opened a
store. The post oflice was moved to the store.
The store still stands, now occupied by the
Hammond Hardware. :

In 1881 Edward N. York opened a store
in the Hammons building and continued to
operate for 11 years. The melting snows of a
winter of many blizzards swelled the Zumbro
river and flooded the hamlet. The York store
was inundated with 4 ft. of water.

Mr. York later joined a partnership with
William Krpger who sold to Adamr Funk. The
E. N, York Merchantile Company was- organ-
ized as the & N. York Co. with E. N. York,
Adam Funk and A. R, Haggerty as owners.
They built a new store. This store still stands.
The nanie I&. N. York Co. almost obliterated
by the hands of time, Mrs. E. N. York and
son Walter live at the old York home during

© the summer months,

. The villagers later changed the name Ham-
mon’s Ford to Hammond its’ present name.
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“I Thought Yeu'd Like To KEnow”

THE NAMING OF JARRETI’S

, In 1855 pioneers from Maryland and North-
ern Pennsylvania of mostly Irish and English
descent, in search of homesiles migrated by
the Zumbro Valley. They were attracted by
the rolling vich farmlands so suitable for ag-
ricultural pursuils and by the wooded cliffs
covered with oak and hazel and by the water.

In their search they came upon an easy
ford of the Zumbro river in the southeast sec-
tion of Hyde Park Township and setlled there
The tales that are told of the hardships of
that bitter cold winter of 1855-56 are almost
unbelievable. What hardy folks they must
have been to survive that winter. Spring came
with it’s hope and it’s promise and these good

. people took heart, planied theiy fields with

wheat oats, and barley and the gardens.

Myr. Jarretts was the first setiler and they
named the hamlel Jarrelts Ford in his honor.
It was later changed to Jarretls it's present
name, .
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The land was varied, rough and hilly with
dense forests of oak and hazel: where in those
pioneer days the fox, wolf and deer darted in
and out of the brushes and Indians made their
home on the eliffs. The uplands were the
rich rolling praries, pride of the pioneers.

1t was not until 1878 that the little hamlet
began to flourish. The narrow gauge railroad
was built that year and a flouring mill run by
water power from a race-way on the Zumbro
river was built by Mr. Kimball and Mr. Kitz-
man who operated it for two years and sold
to Mr. J. L. Owen, who later sold it to Fred G.

Colburn. Mr. Colburn continued in this beehive
of industry for many years and eventually
took his son in as partner.

An elevator with a capacity of 5000 bushels
was built in 1878 and was used as a feeder to
the flouring mill at Mazeppa. F. W. Shaw, al-
so cslablished a general store at this time.
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“I Thought You'd Like To Enow”

HOW ZUMBRO FALLS GOT I''S NAME

The wriler spent a pleasant hour Sunday
aflernoon in the beauliful Zumbro Valley at
the home of Mr. and Mrs. J. Sprenger, life
time residents ol rural Zumbro Talls. This

elderly couple, buth keen in mind and enjoying

good health reealled many interesting stories
of pivnecr days in Zumbro I'alls arca. Mr.
Sprenger was born in 1867 and came Lo live
on a farm near Zumbro Falls with his parents

when about eight years of age and lived all of

his life there.

His farming career was interspersed with
magazine writing and composing lovely poems.
His columns, “Philosophy from a Milk Stool”
and his poems were published monbhly by
Hoard’s Dairyman magazine for many years.
The wriler enjoyed reading o few of the clip-
pings and looks forward to another visit with
Mr, and Mrs, Sprenger.

Way back in 1855 Mr. David Tibbetts pion-
cered to the Zumbro Valley where the village
of Zumbro Falls now lies, built a log house and
established a ferry. ITis brother Abner eame
along and built a cabin. In 1858 John, Van
Smith arrived and built a home in which he

opened a hotel. Other Pioneers from Pennsyl- .

vania, New York and New England in search
of homes found their way to that area. Edwin
Beetnan built a shoe shop, Orrin Pencille a
blacksmith shop, Uriah S. Whaley bought out
Mr. Tibbets, moved into his house and began
operating the ferry. These pioneers settled on
the south side of the river. The flood of 1858
covered the flat and brought extreme hardship
1o the seltlers. *
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The railroad was soon built giving impetus
to the village. Many new businesses were
started. Charles Bryant established a black-
smith shop, David Willard a harness shop.
John Dale a wagon shop, Perry Card a hotel,
Fidel Sugg a general store, Mathias Bright a
harness shop, Dr. Rogers a drug store and
K. A, Harridan a general store. Benjamin
Clark built a dam at the rapids and erected a
grist mill and My, Irish also built a mill. Both
were run by water power from the Zumbro
river raceway. -

Mr. Whaley platted the village on the north
side of the river which was called Whaley’s
addition. B. B, Doty erected a hardware store
and Wm. Churchill a drug store. The post-
office was established in the Fidel Sugg gen-
eral store. '

The cyclone of 1883 did extensive damage
to the south side. Folks became very discour-
aged and many decided to move over to the
north side of the ITiver. Whaley's addition
grew rapidly. Rivalry between the two sec-
tions was keen. Mr. Sprenger recalled that
ihe north town was called Frog town and the
south section Hog town. Mr. Sprenger, then a
lad of 15 years was in the church during the
cyclone when it was ripped from it’s founda-
tion.

The bridge across the river, a pontoan strue-
ture of 5 flat boats. strung together with an
iron rod was carried away in the cyclone and
Mr. Sprenger and another lad rowed a boat
across the swollen river.

The name Whaley’s addition was changed
to Zumbro Falls. A small village up the river
with that name died away and the villagers of
Whaley’s addition decided upon that name.
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“I Thought You'd Like To ¥now”

ABOUT THE NAMING OF MAZEPPA

Mrs, O. G. Nichols of Mazeppa found among
her treaurcd newspaper clippings just what
was needed tn authenticale the facts ol Lhis
story. o

In previous slories you have been told of
pioneers coming to the Zunibro valley. This
story is also about pioneers who came from
England and New York and pilgrimaged to
the Zumbro valley, followed the Zumbro River
to the area wheve the village of Mazeppa now
lies. When they arrived they discoverad a cave
at a poinl where a large brook, now called
Trout Brook emplied into the Zumbro river.
This eave was 15 ['l. high 12 {i. wide al the
enbrance and 70 ft. deep. Pictures of birds,
animals and sovme hieroglyphics were crudely
carved on the rocks. The pioneers thought
the cave was a great blessing and made their
first” homes inside. The horses and other
animals occupied the back of the cave and the
pioneers made themselves comfortable in the
front. Later they built cabins.

An Englishman, Ira . Sceley was Lhe first
settler to arrive in this arca. He came from
New York in 1854. Joseph Ford and his son
Orville came the following year. Mr. Ford and
his son and their families had traveled from
New York to Illinois where relatives lived.
This part of the cduntry was not to their lik-
ing, however. They had heard much about
Minnesota and thought they must see for
themselves what that wonderland offered.
They left their families in Illinois and came
by boat to Read’s Landing, walked from there
to the cabin of Tra Seeley. Tired and hungry
were these pioneer men when they arrived.
Mr. Seeley prepared food for them and a bed
of prairie grass on ice covered ground.

After days of exploration, Mr. Ford and his
son climbed to the brow of a hill overlooking
the valley and viewed the combinalion of
rolling farm lands, the heavy wooded timber
land and the Zumbro river. The eclder Ford
said, “Son, we will go no further, this valley
shall be our home.” He could forsee the pro-
spect of. health, wealth and happiness that
was sure lo come. :

Orville Ford rvelurned to 1llinois, purchased
a team of oxen. a cow and provisions and with

his mother, wife and baby son set oul in 2 -
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covered wagon for Minnesota. The journey
was long hard and perilous but came to a hap-
py end when they were met at their destin-
ation by Joseph Ford and George Maxwell
who had prepared comforts for the weary
travelers.

Olher pioneers came and settled in the val-
ley. The little settlement grew and prospered.
Isaac Nichols, father of the late 0. G. Nichols
who died in 1941 built the first saw mill and
in company with Wm. Armsbury built the 1st
grist mill. He sold this and built a flouring
mill which was washed away by the flood.
Alexander and Rhoderick Sommers built a saw
mill which was kept busy day and night saw-
ing timber for the settler’s shanties.

There were unspeakable hardships for these
fearless men and women. The bitter cold, the
lack of food and the floods all had to be en-

dured.

J. E. HIIyde built a-home where the Mazeppa
bank now stands. The first hotel was in a
housebuilt by N. B. Smith. Stages passed there
bi-weekly. Orville Ford built 2 home and open-
ed a hotel. This building is now occupied by
Ami McDonough. Joseph Ford and ‘his son,
Qrville opened a store where the new Locker
Plant now stands.

Nellie Seeley was the first white child born
in the village. She married John McCellan.

In ihese early days Indians largely out-
numbered the whites. They camped in the
valley cultivated the prairie lands and raised
corn. They were friendly and often stopped
at the homes of the whites to shoot at marks
with them. The pioneer ladies bought beaded
articles and baskets from the Indians. °

A survey of the settlement was made. Ira
Seeley was asked to choose a name for the
village. He chose the name “Mazeppa” be-
cause of his 'love and admiration for Lord
Byron’s immortal poen, “Mazeppa’”. George
Gordon Byron, 6th Lord of England and a

. brilliant poet wrote this poemi of 20 cantos

in 1819. “Mazeppa” the hero of the poem was
a soldier who fought in the Swedish mon-
arch’s ranks in the war between Russia and
Sweden. The poem itself has no bearing upon
the naniing of the village. It was just that it
was a great favorite of Mr. Seeleys.
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The village of Minneiska is rated, next to
Wabasha as the oldest village in Wabasha
County.

In 1851 Michacl Agnes came up from St.
Louis, sellled in the southeastern corner and
huilt a shanly. e engagred in cutting wood
for the making of steamhoals. Louis Krulely
came and- settled near Charles R. Read of
Read’s Landing purchased a claim about four
miles up the river.- These ecarly setllers lived
mostly on game and fish and would trade
these for flour from the slewards of the
steamboats. ‘They climbed lrees and watched
and waited for long hours for steamboats
which in Lthose days only came about once in
lwo months.

Abner Tibbells, B, C. Baldwin, Joseph
Schurb and B. H. Reppe were among the ar-
rivals in 1852, They laid out a portion of their
claim into a townsite and named it West New-
ton. This name was chosen because of a steam-
boat that had been sunk in Lthe river. The
pilot house of which was in shallow water and
the name Neoswlbon in clear view.

A postoflice was  eslablished in B. 11
Reppe’s store and West Newton seemed Lo be
on the road to becoming quite a place, Elabor-
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river kept wearing the banks away il the|
village was finally forced to surren¢  Much
of that early village was buried in . river. |

Mr. Agnes laid out the village of Ne—eiska
in 1864. Minneiska is the Dakoba Indisze mame
Tor Whitewater. Minne is white and4ska is
waler. The village was named after the White-
water river which ran through the township
and entered the Mississippi near the town-
site. . :

In 1856 Pliny Putnam built a hotel, S. A.|:
Houck, H. B, Slater opened general stores,|.

Bigelow and sons erected a sawmill and M.
Bentley and Gale built ‘'a large grain house.
In 1859 Timmerman and Swart built a large
warchouse, A. P. Foster of Plainview drew
the first load of wheat to that warehouse.

Mary Schurb, daughter of Mr. and Mrs.
Jacob Schurb was the first white child born
in the village.

Elder Mallinson began to conduet .religious
services in the village. In 1851 Father Fissot
of Wabasha conducted mass in the cabins of
the settlers for several years. In 1867 Michael
Agnes donated a lot and the settlers were as-
sessed $1100 to build a little church. This
church served the village of Minneiska for 44
years. . ‘
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HOW THE VILLAGE OF WEAVER
GOT IT’'S NAME

In 1851 Andrew Olson a pioneer from Nor-
‘way who had been in the East for some time
prospecting on a homesite came to the area
where the village of Weaver now lies, ‘cut

some logs and built a cabin. Two brothers

George and Christopher Abbott followed him
and buill cabing nearby A lJitlle Jater William

Weaver arrived from New York Slale, built
a cabin and engaged in Lfarming. 'he village
of Weaver platbed in 1871 lies on the north
side of this farm. It was named in honor of
thiy pioneer,

When the railroad ran through this section
the village began to grow and prosper. W. H.
Hopkins erected and opened a store, stocking
general merchandise and machinery. The post
office was eslablished in this store and Mr.
Hopking was made postmaster.

Wm. Weaver erected a large hotel. Ware-
houses for grain storage were built when the
bumper crops of 1871 had to be -cared for.
The school house was built in 1872. Services
for the Methodist and Norwegian Lutheran
Congregations were held in the schbol house.

John ahd Mary Callahan emigrated from
Ireland in 1837 and settled in New York., A

“I Thought You' d Like To hEnow”
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son Michael was born to them. He came to

.Weaver when a very young man, became

station agent and telegraph operator. He mar-
ried Eliza Hitcheock of Weaver and they had|
one daughter, Mary Agnes.

These early settlers saw' their share of

_hardship and privation, but bitter cups were

often sweetened and dark hours lightened by
the merry gatherings of the settlers. They
were o friendly lot and used to hold singing
and spelling schools, and give sleigh and hay
rides.

The land around Weaver has always been
high in fertility and the wheat and other crops
were bountiful. In the early days there were
times when the pioneers had to resort to
johnny cake or potatoes when supplies were
low but they managed. There was usually an
abundance of prairie chicken, grouse and a
few deer to increase their slim bill of fare. ,

Indians lived on the plateau and the pion-
eers spent many wakeful nights as rumors of
hostilities reached their ears. However, but
very few scalps were lost. The friendly In-
dians would often drop in at the cabins of the
pioneers in the evenings to play cards and
shoot at targets.

2
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“I Thought You'd Like To hnow”
iought Youd Like o hnow
This slory compleles the series as lo how lthe various lowns in Wabasha County acquired
their amames.  The  compiling ol the faut§ used in  ihe series has taken many hours
of research and mnany miles of travel. That the time and effort has been worthwhile is evidenced
by the many favorable eommenls we have received. While this week completes this interesting

series of historical stories aboul Wabasha Counly towns, Mrs. Mack, who originated and wrote
them has promised o start a new and different series in the very near future which I hope you
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will enjoy as well as Lhe oue just compleled.
ABOUT THE NAMING OF WABASIIA

Wabasha, the bewulilul town built on a
terrace overlooking the Mississippi river and
surrounded by towering blulls, vanks as Lhe

oldest town on the Mississippi. 1L had ib’s he- -

ginning way back in 1826, almosl 30 ycars
before all of the other towns in Wabasha
and adjoining countics were estublished. The
story is an epoc of the changing of Lhe hunt-
ing grounds of savages into cultivaled farms
and homes.

Augustin Rocque, a French Canadian fur
trader came to this area which was then a
wilderness covered with underbrush and trees
and inhabited by Indian tribes, one of which
was Chicl Wahpashaw or Red Leaf and his
band of Sioux Indians. Mr. Rocque sellled in
the extreme weslern parl of the present town
of Wabasha across the slough. Ile named lhe
site Rocque’s Landing.

Duncan Campbell, a native of Scotland also
came to this area. They engaged in fur trade
with the Indians. In 1838 Oliver Cratle, an
Englishman who had emigrated to Canada
from England when a young lad found his
way to this territory, built a house on the
levee and named the spot, Cratle’s Landing,
Joseph Buisson, another Canadian also settled
nearby and engaged in Indian trade and farm-
ing. Francois LaBatte, a half breed nephew of
Wah-pa-shaw established a post at Wabasha

in 1841 which he later sold to Alexis Bailly. .

LaBatte was killed in the Indian massacre of
1862,

The Editor.

These early traders lived a very primilive
life among the Indians in this Mississippi.
river wilderness. They built shacks of logs, on
the levee, clinking them with mud and sand.
Indian teepes were everywhere. The Indians
would peak.in the windows of the whites or
stalk into their cubins demanding food or
coshpop, the Indian term for a dime. They
"were peaceable, however and uprisings were
, few,

| : . .
: Duncan Graham, a native of Scotland

came to Wabasha in 1831. He had been carry-
ing the mails between Praivie du Chein and
the Red River of the North traveling in most
of the Northwest states and finally locatling in

somn.

The town of Wabasha was in 1843, a

mere Llrading post and stopping place for
traders and voyagers passing in steamboats
up and down the river and around the lales.
The litlle group of traders decided to name
the selllenment Wah-pa-shaw. Mr. Duncan
Graham wrole the name and an account of the
fransaclions on a sheet of paper which he
placed in a bottle and buried. He placed a post
dat the spot with the sign Wah-pa-shaw writ-
ten in large letters on it. He then broke a
bottle of Whisky on the post-to celebrate the
christening. It has been said that this cere-
mony took place where the First National
Bank was built in later years.

" Wabasha. His daughler married Joseph Buis- ]




A sloty is told that Chief Wah-pa-shaw,,
living wilh his tribe at Sand Prairie was in-
viled {o a council of the troublesome Winne-
bago Indians. After listening to the Winne-
bago chiels telling of what they proposed to
do to the whiles, old Wah-pa-sha arose and
pulling a hair from his head and blowing it
away saild. “If you harm a single white man
I will blow you from the face of the earth
just as I have blown that hair away.

In 1849 a bill was passed organizing the
JLexritory of Minnesota. It was not until 1855,
that the town of Wabasha was surveyed and
laid out by A. S. Hart, Oliver Cratte,, Joseph
‘Buisson and Philo Stone. R ’

From then on .the story is one of rapid
progress. Stores, hotels and warehouses were
built. A postoffice was established with Alexis
Bailly as postmaster. A newspaper called the
Wabashaw Journal was first printed in 1856.
Churches and schools were built,

In 1856 the name of the village Wah-pa-
shaw was changed to Wabasha. The first
agricultural TFair was opened in 1869 in. an
building erected for a warehouse. Mr. S. L.
Campbell was the first Secretary of the Fair
Ass'n and H. C. Simpson, Treasurer.

Wabasha became a wonderful market. for |
wheat and large mills, warehouses and‘gleva- |
tors were built. Congress constructed a mili-
tary road of 75 miles from Wabasha to;Men-
dota. The branch of the Minneapolis-St. Paul
and Milwaukee railroad was completed in 1871
giving added life to this flourishing village.
The Indiang and halfbreeds had gradually
dissappeare{l. Civilization had reared this
wilderness in that short space of time into a
busy prosperous village.
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“I Thli“[_lhl Yﬂli,ll Likﬂ Tﬂ K‘—llﬂw” - - - by GLADYS MACK!

In my browsing around throughout the country, obtaining material on how the .
various towns of the couniry derived their names 1 found an unusual number. of

our readers inlevested in hislorical events -and places.

For -that reason “I' Thought

You’d Like to Know", the history of some of our business institutions, the people
who originated them and their progress since their early day founding. The
Plainview Creamery drew my atlention for the first article because of its phenom-
enal progress in the past few years. Its early history is equally as phenomenal. I
hope you'll enjoy reading about its early and present day pioneers.

SOME INTERESTING FACITS ABOUT PLA INVIEW’S FAST GROWING AND PROS-.

PEROUS CREAMERY BUSINESS

The first crecamery in Plainview was built
‘by A. Y. Felton in 1881. Mr. Felton came to
Plainview from Vermont in 1861 and was em-
ployed as clerk in the Ozias Wilcox Store. In
1866 he purchased the drug business from
Crowley and Company and operated that un-
til 1874. He was elected County treasurer in
1867 and served unlil 1871, Was elected mem-
ber of the schoul board and served until 1878.
He became president of the first Telegraph
Co. operating a line between Plainview and
Minneiska.

In 1876 he purchased land from P. 8. Dan-
forth a part of the property now owned by
George Dickman and Otto Karslen and built
.a home, The beautiful home built so long ago
by Mr. Felton, of the finest materials procur-
able al that time was purchased by Mr.
George Dickman and has been the family
home of the Dickmans ever since. In the
spring of 1881 he built a creamery on this
land near his home on the property now own-
ed by Otio Karsten. That was Plainview's 1st
creamery. It was established for the purpose
of making butter, e started out with 4 teams
of horses and 2 inside factory hands. In the’
fall he purchased 2 more teams. The teams:
were all used to haul cream {rom the neigh-
boring farmers to the creamery. From 5Q0 to
600 inches was the average daily collection
with occasionally as high as 700 inches. The
-creamn cans had a narrow glass strip on the
:side where the amount of cream could be
computed.

Butter was sold to markets in St. Paul,
Minneapolis and other parts of the Northwest
with the balance going to Eastern markets.
Then as now “Quality” was the outstanding

feature of the Dairy products of this area. At -
a state Fair held in Rochester, Myr. Felton
was awarded Englands silver cup contributed
by Higgens and Company of Liverpool, Eng-
land for the best creamery butter salted with
their salt.

The creamery was destroyed by fire and a
new creamery and cheese factory was built
by Mr. Gerber and C. Bitter on the property
owned by Wm. L. Schultz, now owned by his
son, 0. W. Schultz. Gerber and Bitter sold out
to Mr. Kirch who operated for a short time
and this creamery too was destroyed by fire.

In 1899 a board of direclors was organized
for the purpose of organizing a Cooperative
Creamery in Plainview. Serving ou this board
were Wm. Reiter, L. D. Colby, W. P. Baldwin,
Andrew French, Peter Lamprecht. O. Sloliz
and George Burnham Jr. They voted to erect
a new creamery and bids of W. A. Gorrell in
the amount of $979 were accepted and the
‘bond of the contractor fixed at $1000 with
:$1900 for machinery. The main buildings
24%x40 ft. with engine room 20x20 ft. and an
ice house 18x18 fl. were erccled on a lot pur-
chased from the Weigel property at a cost of
$200. -

The first buttermaker was A. R. Lund
whose salary was $60 per month with: milk,
cream and butter for the family for a year
thrown in. Salaries of bullermaker increased
each year. In 1909 the buttermaker received
$105 and in 1920 $226. Buttermilk was first
sold for;$10.00 for the year. In 1921 it was
sold for $406 and in 1930 for $1076. Ice was
put up by voluntary work of the Creamery
association. In 1909 however Lhey voted to
buy ice at 15 cenls per cake.

New improvements were added each year. A



new churn, a butter printer and a new Beam
Scale. Creamery receipts in 1908 were 3$55,-
093.61. In 1918, $126,899.37 and in 1922,
$133,030.18. The building was proving more
inadequate from day to day .to take care
of this increasing volume of business.

1n 1923 a board of directors, George Christ-.

ison, Michael Pletch, Ed Holzer, Rudolph
Stoltz, R. L. Irish, W. F. Lamprecht and M. D.
Melendy called a meeting for the purpose of
voting on building a new creamery. The As-
sociation purchased the property, (the site of
the present creamery) from Amy R. French
for $26500 and work was begun in June 1923.
" Plainview’s new $21,000 creamery was ready
for occupancy Nov. 23, 1923. The two story
structure of brick concrete and tile has a 4:
ft, glazed tile wainscoating. The interior was,
finished entirely in white. There were special-
ly constructed rooms for processes, power was
obtained from individual motors with an ag-

gregate of 33Y4 horse power. The steam :

engine used in the old creamery was installed
to be used as an auxiliary in case the current
failed. There were 5 cream vats, 2 storage
refrigeration rooms, a 1a'bratory- room for
tests of butter and cream. Individual shower
rooms. In 1928 a buttermilk dryer was pur-
chased for $5600. A new boiler room was built
that year with a sky light built later.

The salary of the buttermaker again in-
creased until in 1930 he received $375.00 per
month. Buttermilk that year sold for $1075.
Gradually a buttermilk dryer, refrigerator,
butter scale, butter printer, cooling system,
butter milk powder: grinder, 2 new vats and 2
new barrels for churns and a stoker were add-
ed. Old equipment was turned in on the pur-

_chase of new. In July they started tq ship

butter by truck alternating for many years
with railroad shipping. Feed had been added
to the industry. The old creamery was sold to
the County in 1931 for $450. . .
‘A prediction in the Plainview News of Nov.
23, 1923 stated that with this fast growing
industry it was believed that in 25 more years
even this new building would be inadequate
to care for the business and that prediction
has proven: true. As predicted by the News
the growth of the creamery reached the point
of necessary expansion in 1944. At that time
a remodeling job made the building adequate
for this concern Lo convert from exclusive
butter production to the handling of whole .
milk and several of it’s bi-products. This ex-
pansion has continued since the 1944° con-
version. In 1945 a new boiler room and boiler

" were added. At the present time an additional

building program is in progress which will
add 7500 feet of floor space. The latest ex-
pansion will more than double the whole milk
receiving capacity and will also make it:poss-.
ible to produce additional products from the
milk and cream received. S

The original drying plant was built for a
capacity of 60,000 lbs. of whole milk per day
During the past year the low point in daily
receipts exceeded 40,000 lbs. and a high of
90,000 lbs. was reached. The estimated peak
expected is from 110,000 to 120,000 Ibs. daily,
double the present plant capacity. The con-
struction and insiallation of new equipment
will be completed in about five months.

Serving on the board of directors at this
time are Mead Vermilya, Ed Schultz,, Wm.
Drysdale, Lewis Dickerman, Judson Went-
worth, Kenneth Steffen and Arthur Olin. The
present manager is Mr. Peipper.






Great changes have taken place on the vil-
lage street since that commemoration day in
1891 when folks dressed up in their Sunday
"best, paraded the hoard walks of Plainview’s
main street and paused for friendly chats,
One can almost visualize Lhis scene. The
wagon step on the corner for ladics to use in
getting in and out of the buggies and wugons
proved that even in that day things were pro-
vided for the comfort of shoppers. The kero-
sene lamps on the posts which served so well

in that early day would seem unbearable to -

us who enjoy the comforts of our eleclrie
lights.

The first building to the right is the har-
ness shop of John Reifkogel, & German en{i—
grant who came to Plainview fro'm Boston in
1865 and established a harness’ shop. In a
short while he was doing the largest harness
and leather business in the county. His son
William became his partner and eventually
succeeded him.

A]ong the line is the meat market owned
and operated by Wm. Weigel and his sons,
Harry and Fred. The latter is still a resident
of Plainview. The Lawton Grocery is next in
line, followed by Harry Austin’s jewelry store.

"The Bolton Drug Company, Al Drydale’s bar- -

ber shop, Herman Thom’s shoe shop, Maggie
Lambie's millinery and dressmaking shop, the
hotel, and across the street the C. C. Corn-
well Hardware store. On the left hand side
of the street-in the building now -occupied by
the Eggers Grocery the C. O. Landon Drug
Company did a thriving business. The Corn-
well dry goods and grocery was next and fol-
lowing along the line was the Pencille musu,
company.

Interesting historienl facls about  Plain-
view's pioneer business houses were revealed
in the search for material for this story.

Thomas G. Bollon and his widowed molher
“and brothers and sisters migrated from New
. York to Wabasha in 1855, Ile got a job as
 cabin boy on a Mississippi river steamboat.
In 1861 he began to work for James Crowley,
a Wabasha druggist. In 1863 the Gmw].ey
Drug Company opened a drug store in Plain-
view with Thomas Bolton as proprietor. '.l‘hps
began the first drug slore in Plainview. He
operated that business for two years an.d then
opened a drug store in Eyota returning to
Plainview in 1874. In 1880 Mr. Bolton became

a partnef in the Plainview Drug Slore now
owned by George G. LaRue, a former ap-
prentice in his first store. The firm continued
until Mr.
and Miller became owners and managers.
Thomas Bolton had many and varied inter-
ests, He was agenl for the Laird-Norton lum-
ber company of Winona. His farm was stock-
el with super breeds of. blooded stock. He

was an outstanding leader in tae busmess and
social life of the village.

. J. Cornwell, a' native of Savannah

Georgia. came' Lo Plainview in 1865 and be-
came a clerk in the Ozias Wilcox general Store, |:
In 1876 following the illness and déath of Mr:

Wilcox, Mr. Cornwell became proprietor of

the store. He moved the merchandise into the :
spacious new brick building built by A. Y. Fel-

tun and in 1881 purchased the building. This
same building is now owned and occupied by
Dave Leonard and Elmer Koepsell.”

The proprietor of the hotel -was the gen-

ial Ezra Fellers, “Uncle Ez to everyone and
his good wife who purchased the hotel from
A. Y. Felton in 1881. A. C. Woodeock worked
in this hotel from 1889 to 1901. The hotel
was noted for its scrupulous cleanliness and
conduct of management. The building still
stands although additions and alterations
have been made throughout the years.

In 1874 C. O. Landon, C. D. Burchard and
S. E. Case purchased the drug store owned by

. A. Y. Fellon of pioneer creamery fame. In

1877, Mr. Burchard bought out the Case
interest and the firm became Landon and
Burchard and George Landon, son of C. O.
.andon assumed his father’s mtelest

Dr. Taber, tlu, dentist, occupled an oﬁlce in
a litlle imxm building standing on the lot
now owned by A. C. Woodcock. He directed
the brass band, led the Methodist Choir and
the singing school.. HFle was "an expert marks-

man and held medals for championships in |

five counties. He held the enviable record of
shooting eleven out of twelve running deer.

Looking-at this early day scene makes one
more conscivus of the tremendous progress
that has been going on in the past half cen-
tury. Many .fine new buildings have been
erected, improvements of all kinds have been
made. Pluinview has kept and will always

keep in step with the fast moving hands ot
‘Progress.

Bolton’s death when his sons John|-
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December 12, 1946

“I Thought Youw'd Like To 'liniﬁv”

THE WRITER OF THIS COLUMN
.18 GOING ON A MOTORMAN’S HOLIDAY

The compiling of this type of c'o]umn, while
one of the most interesting in the newspaper

field, is one of the most difficult and stren- -

uous any one of our writing staff is required
to produce. The writer has a wealth of inter-
esting hislorical facts which she intends to
publish. :

. The News has no intention of permanently
discontinuing the “I Thought You'd Like To
Know” column. For the next week or two
Mrs. Mack is being given a sort of motorman’s
holiday during which she will hunt out new

= = - by GLADYS MACK

facts and information for use in later issues of
this paper. '

With Christmas so close at hand we are
releasing her from the job of writing -her
column. We're quite sure that unless given a
little shopping time we’ll celebrate Christmas
without a beautiful new tie or something.

Whether she ‘has a enjoyable vacation or
not we assure you that in a very short timell:
her “I Thought You'd Like To Know” column|||
will appear with many new and interesting his-
torical facts of Plainview’s buildings,»business
institutions, and people.

I'm sure you’ll welcome the return  of the
column as much as we’ll enjoy giving it to
you—The editor. .







his shop in the same building he had lelt.
It was Lhen that he added stock purchascd
from A. Y. Felton which included bullalo
coats, gloves, groceries and dry goods. This
was the beginning of a retail merchandising
enterprize that was destined to become one
of the largest and most prosperous retail
stores in all of southeastern Minnesota.

The store with it’s dim kerosene lamps.
Its open barrels of pickles, sugar, dried
prunes and apples, tobacco, smoked fish and

olher items was a virtual beehive of in-
dustry where pioneers vied with each other
in trading and visiting and where latest
reports on current happenings were passed

around. Mr. and Mrs.. Koenig and small
children lived up stairs over the store. In .
those early days wholesale goods were ship-
ped by water to Minneiska and Weaver -
from large cilies and were brought over-
1and to Plainview by team. Farmers would -
bring their grain to market and return

home with wagous or sleighs loaded with
groceries, machinery, dry goods etc. A tre-
mendous amount of buying and selling was
done at the Koenig store.

An interesting page of wholesale pur-
ehases from one of the Koenig ledgers dat-
- ed 1876 contained the following list of items

500 1bs. of bacon, $.00; 221 Ibs. of sugar

$23.48; 1295 lbs. of prunes $73.97; 193 lbs.

dried apples $20.27; 291 1bs. currants;
$22.65; 6 pair hip bools $20.00; 113 yards

. sheeting $8.76; 53 1bs. cheese §5.57; 50 Ibs.

smoking tobaceo, $15.00,

. George Dickman clerked in the store
from 1883 to 1887, Ile recalls an advertis-
ment Mr. Koenig put in the “Plainview

- Record” which read as follows. Fur Sale—
One suit of clothes, one white shirt and one

pair of suspenders all for $5.00 and Money
to Loan, Signed Wm. Koenig Sr.

This business outgrew it’s quarters and
in 1881 he moved the building to the back
of the lot to be used as a warehouse and
erected a large two story frame building
in il's place. - -

When his sons matured Mr. Koenig took
them.in as partners, Wm. Jr. first, then
Arthur and in 1892 Albert joined the com-
pany. A great many items were added to
the stock as years went by including bug-
gies, wagons, windmills and other items.
Mr. Koenig had many other interests out-
side of the merchantile business. Among
them a grain elevator, real estate, and cat-
tle buying. Much of the bookkeeping for

these enterprizes was “done in his head.”
One of his employees recalls how an im-
portant transaction was figured on the side
boards of his wagon Wwith a nail substituting
for a pencil. He gradually retired from the
store and his three sons assumed most of |
the vesponsibilities of the Company which
was called “Koenig Brothers and Company”.
This siore, too, outgrew it’s quarters and
the Koenig brothers decided to build a new
building. In 1899 they moved the old
building to the lot East and used it for a
warehouse. The building still stands and
is now occupied by the Marshall Wells store.

They then crecled a large brick building.
66x110 ft. at a cost of $12,000., one of the,
most modern stores in this section of the
slate, not surpassed in size and magnitude
of stock by any store in any city of 25,000
or more inhabitants. The store was lighted
throughout with acetylene gas lamps and

heated by steam. Harry Evans of Wabasha

was the contractor. .

In 1904 the Company was incorporated
and conducted with Arthur " Koenig as
President, A. K. Briese as Vice-President
and I'raunk Schad as Treasurer. These men
were all progressive young business men
filled with ambition and ripe with exper-
ience in- the merchantile business gained
from the stout hearted, determined pioneer

- Wm. Koenig who had rhet with success in

almost every undertaking since coming to
Greenwood Prairie. Later Wm. Jr. and Al-
berl went to Sioux Falls, S. D. where they
engaged in the wholesale grocery business

~and real estate .with marked success as

years went by.

+The Plainview store had grown rapidly

: and expanded in all of its departments. In

1919 Arthur Koenig’s interest in the com-
pany was taken over by the newly organiz-

“ed firm of Frank, Edward and Will Schad

and Paul Johnson. Arthur went to Sioux
Falls to join his brothers in their business
enterprizes. Paul Johnson had been with
the company for over 18 years and Frank

. Schad about 15 years. Both were experienc-

ed in all phases and departments of the
company., They named it “The Schad Mer-

. chantile Company.” After putting on a big

sale the store was thoroughly scrubbed,

- fixtures and shelves were varnshied and

everything was brightened up. Old lights
were replaced by new and modern drop




Lights. The commodities stocked

included men’s furnishings, dry.

goods, shoes ,ladies ready-to-wear
groceries, ‘hardware, millinery,
etc. The store operated with
great success until 1924 when it
was taken over by the Plainview
Merchantile :‘Company who oper-
at for two years. In 1926 the
Schads bought it back and oper-
ated until 1930. From then on
the building housed the Farmers
Store of Eau Claire Wisconsin,
owners of Minnesota stores with
the nearest one at Red Wing.
The [Farmers Store was succeed-
ed by the Cohen Economy Store.
The fall of 1939 marked the end
‘of a merchandising business.that
had growa from its humble be-
ginning to an expansion beyond
the fondest hopes of the pioneer
who came io this country with
but little' money and made his
fortune dfrom the mnatural ,re-
sources 'of Greenwood prairie.

Harlan Holzer and Pat Grif-
{fin purchased the building in

‘11840 and remodeled it for af

skating rink and bowling alley
which became a wery active
place for a few months, In the
early hours of Thursday morning
July 4, 1840 when Arthur Walch

was going ‘down to his Motor :
Company he discovered smoke:
seeping drom the windows of the’

Koenig block, and immediately
put in the alarm. When firemen
arrived they found the entire
basement a miass of dense smoke.
Fire had started in the furnace
room at the north end of the
building which made it very dif-
ficult for the firemen. In a short

while in spite of efforts of the:
Plainview, Elgin and Rochester |

fire departments swith three en-
gines going full blast, it was im-
possible to save the building.
Brigades of onlookers carried out
merchandise from the Men’s
shop. The -Vollenweider Motor
Co. and Dr. Kavanaugh's veter-
inarian office,

The dire raged for many hours
and the building lay a mass of
ruin. In the fall of that year
Harlan Holzer built a new and
ulira modern one story brick|
building there equipped with the
very latest in fixiures.and built!
of the finest materials obtainable,
It is built in five units all con-
nected by halls and doorways.
It first housed the I.G.A. grocery’
owned by Clarence Knutson, The!
Men's Shop, The Tip Top Res-
taurant apd’ the Lanesboyo Pro-
duce Company. Later the Ladies
Shop replaced the I.G.A. Store
then Clate’s grocery store was
housed .there d£qr about two
months until it was sold to Vin-
cent King, The Nathan Langhum
Co. replaced the Lanesboro Pro-
duce Co. and Mr., Spooner, the
present owner of the building
has an Income Tax office in the
building.

i
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“I Thought You'd Like

February 6,

To hnow”

' =« - by GLADYS MACK

Probably one of the most waluable and necessary products for the welfare
and health of community life is the easiest to obtain and the least expensive o buy
under present day modern disldbution systems. That protluct is water. Qur early
pioneers, while spending but little for this necessity of life, had no end of incon-
venience to oblain this product, The story which follows is divided in two parts
the first of which gives the early history of our bresent-day water syshem.—-:Edjtoz"

Pore- 7a:uaez_‘ payd . ‘. ¢ o "

The source of our drinking water since
"the beginning of time has been found in
Mother Earth. One of the .Tirst problems

the early day pioneers had to solve was
that of water supply.

As early as 1854 two men, Nels Oleson
and Andrew A. Halverson migrated from
Norway to this area, the first white men

to break the sod. They were followed soon
after by Messrs. A. 'I'. Sharp, Wm. Boat-
man, David Campbell, Thomas Todd, E. E,
Eddy, David Ackley, Edwin Chapman, A. P.
Foster, Rodman Burchard, Benjamin Law-
rence and others. Mr. Eddy and Mr. Boat-
man were the first pioneers to bring their
wives ialthough others soon followed. We
wonder if (to quote Hal Boyle of the Min-
neapolis Star Journal) the pioneers brought
their women along because they needed
someone braver than themselves.

These first pioneers gazed about at the
area of luxuriant verdure, the forest of
oak, and undulating prairies of rich soil and

decided that here, indeed, was the haven
they were seeking. They were content to
pitch their tents and begin the work of
building homes and carving out fortunes.
They settled in the area East of the present
village of Plainview where the August
Schultz farm is located and established a
village and named it Greenville. A name
chosen because of the freshness and green-

ery of vegetation. This area was four miles -

from Whitewater river, the nearest water

supply which was quite some distance in
those early days especially if the roads and-

weather were bad. The pioneers decided to
dig a well. This proved to be a hard and

disappointing task. They reached a depth :

] of 18 feet and still no water appeared and
‘a tired, discouraged lot of settlers they
. were,

- A humorous story is told that our older
i readers will recall but for those recent
_comers to Plainview village and for the
- younger folks it bears repeating. One of the
. pioneers Mr. A. T. Sharp received a note
. from an Eastern Capitalist saying that he
! would soon arrive in Greenville to' look the
" place over. This caused the wily Mr. Sharp
“much anviety. That dry well wouldi’t look
. too good to the capitalist. A happy thought
struck him. Why not put water from the-
" river in the well to impress the visitor? This
"proved to be a laboricus task but he was
" satisfied and awaited with eagerness the
arrival of the visitor. When he arrived Mr.
Sharp escorted him about the town site and
. elaborated on it's wonders, told him about
! the wonderful well with it’s abundance of
_clear sparkling water and took him to the
; well so that he might see for himself. When
 they gazed into it’s depth much to the Bast-
" erner’s amazement and Mr. Sharp’s em-
- barassment the water had leaked out and
i the well was as dry as a bone. Among Mr.
Shiarp's ,other elaborations to his guest
: that were minus veracity were a proposed
- railroad that had been surveyed through
the village coming all the way from Dub-
'uque, Iowa, a Seminary that was to be
{ erected and last but not least a Deautiful
"lake (near the Melendy farm). This latter
proved to be just an old swimming hole
with plenty of mud. The capitalist left in
a huff.

A ride over beautiful Greenwood Prairie
today with it's wealth of prosperous farms
_is convincing proof that here on these

prairies that gentleman from the East

might have found the source of wealth he
. was seeking.

N

The settlers of Greenville were rewarded
by reaching water in their next abtempts
at well digging. The small shallow wells,




however, caused them endless trouble as
they would so often go dry. That was among
countless other hardships endured by the
. pioneers. When one of the pioneers was
" asked in later years how they endured the
hardships of those early days he replied,

“Well, everyone was a sufferin’ the same
way so a person didn’t seem to mind it so
bad.” L
During the summer of 1856 a group of
pioneers laid out a village on the site of
the present village of Plainview and named
it Centerville. Many new settlers arrived
from the East and folks from Greenville
drifted into the! new town site, built homes
and dug wells. These shallow wells served
as the only source of water supply for many
years but not without hazards. The inferior
quality of the water found in the surface
wells, it’s liability to pollution and failure
in dry seasons gradual]y led theé villagers
to decide to ‘dig a deep well, They began
digging on the south east comer of the
present school grounds. When they reached
a depth of 150 feet they struck a wind
-vine. When the wind blew in one direction
the well would suck.in paper and:in another
direction would blow out.’ Mr. Pomeroy,
the janitor at the school made the discovery
that the well would play & mouth organ.

Taking a tin pan he placed a mouth organ in
- it and set it down in the well. The mouth
_ organ played night and day. Folks con-

gregated at the well to hear it play and

broughit their own mouthorgans to experi-
"~ ment with. :

The idea of having a well ox .this spot
was abandoned and they began to dig a

. few feet North of this well. Their efforts.

‘were well repaid .for water gushed forth
- from this well. What rejoicing there was
when their determined efforts were erown-
ed with success. The good earth gave forth
in abundance. The next .step was to erect
a small tank and a windmill. The wind well
as it had -beguxi to be called was closed as
children were throwing articles into it and
then of course it was a haza_x\-d.i .

L o o ,

Not much was needed for many years as
 far as watergupply was concerned. As the
. population grew, however, the supply- would

~Fairbanks and Morse Company at $11,800.

. in the near futlure.

‘in two parts. The next part will be publish-

become -threafseningly low. A group of vil-
lagers organized into an association' and

- called it “The Plainview Water Supply As-

sociation.” In April 1893 they sold the win
mill and fixtures at the town well to the

- village of Plainview for $140.70, this
- amount being the balance due on the wind-

mill and fixtures. The Village assumed the

debt and promised tp control and maintain
the transferred property to the best interest
of the citizen’s of the village.

_In June 1893 R. R. Damoude and Albert
Koenig were appointed to see to repairing
the well and putting in a new casing. This

: cost the village $51.59. In 1894 a new water
- tank was erected at a cost of $45.00. Water

from the tank was not to be used for any

. purpose except for fires and for sprinkling

of streets. :
v »
In December 1894 Messrs F. L. Meachum
and R. R. Damoude were appointed to go
to St. Paul to secure all of the informatio
possible in regard to u system of water

- works for Plainview village and on their

return to look up a site for a’new deep well
and pumping station. At a special election
held in June 1895 at Grand Army Hall, cit-
izens of Plainview voled to issue bonds not

- to exceed $10,000 due on or before ten years
" from date issued at an interest rate of b per

. cent for the construction of a water works
. in the village. '

Bids for the construction were received
Monday July 8, 1895 by the village council
at one o'clock p.-m. at the office. of the
village recorder. The bids called for a two
thousand barrell tank on an 80 ft. ateel:
lower, & gasoline pumping engine and two
miles of water mains with valves and

hydrants, .

At a speéia‘l meeting of the village coun-
cil, July 8, 1895 the bid was accepted from

A new well for Plainview would be a reality

Beoause. of the length of interesting
material this story necessitates to be issued

ed in next weeks issue of this paper.

~ : -



February 18, 1947

“I Thought You'd Like To Know”

The hislory ol Plainview's water system reveals the sound judgement and con-
fidence in the growth of this communily of those early pioneers who engineered its
planning. While the city’s present water demands have reached a consumption run-
ning into thousands of gallons above the early needs our wells, tank and distribution
systems were so laid and planned that it has not been difficult to adapt the system

- - - by GLADYS MACK

to new and modern requxremenls—ll'.he Editor.

pte- 7aucet paya é ont. .

The site chosen for the new well was the

gite of the present Plainview Waterworks _

The new well was drilled in the fall of 1895.
The well was eight feet in diameter with a
tube down to the rock and a six inch hole
“in the rock to the underlying strata. A gas-
oline pumping engine was installed with a
capacity of 81 gallons to the minute. A
wooden tank was erected on an 80 foot
tower. About two miles of mains were run
_and valves and hydrants were placed.

A pump house was erected. The front -

room of the pump house was used as the
Village Hall and the city jail was in the
rear. Plainview’'s new Waterworks system
was the pride and joy of the villagers espec-

ially the thousewives who reveled in the

stream of waler pouring from the faucets
and thought of how easy their work would
be now that they didn’t have 1o pump and
carry water.

In 1896 about 3300 feet of 4 inch mains
and three hydrants were added to the

system. In October 1897 the Council de-

cided to establish titles for village offices.
The person caring for the Waterworks
equipment was given the title of “Engineer
of Waterworks”. P. J. Feisheim was the
first person holding that title. The person
in charge of the Waterworks service was
" given the title of Watlerworks superintend-
ent. Arthur Koenig was the first one to
hold that title. Salaries for both were set
_at $276 per year. Records show that Arthur
Koemg served that year (at his own re-
quest) without remuneration. Both officers
put up $500 bonds.

In October 1898 due to difficulties in and
expense of pum.pmg the council decided to
.change from using gasoline to steam in
pumping the water. The pump and engine
for the change over were purchased from

the American Well Company and installed. :
The ‘gasoline engine was retained to use in :
, case of emergency. The water in the well :

‘ ,on the school grounds was t9_1_'ned. into the

i ! Village Council,

mams and the well sealed. This proved a -
great help to the supply at that time. The
supp]y was found to be inadequate at thls..,
.time and was a constant problem to the
At times it would be
alarmingly low and there was always the®

: fires to worry about. In 1898 the Council-
. detailed C. D. Burchard to go to St. Paul

and other points to find out all the informa-
tion possible on the well problem.
In 1899 the supply of water was consider-

. ed definitely inadequate. Something had to ‘

- be done to relieve the situation. The council

voted to drill 2 new and deeper well and
:advertised for bids. The bid of Banks and

., Keenan Company of Wykoff was accepted. -
. The company commenced work in the fall

that year. 1t took three months of constant
effort to drill the well and there were many

“set backs. The first delay was in getting
: through the 70 ft. of clay. The dirt caved

in so badly that 70 ft. of 12 inch casing had

_to be inserted before work could be contin-

ued which proved to be a very difficult
task. Drilling was then resumed and the
well was sunk 120 feet farther through
sand rock. After getting through the sand
rock, Trenton lime was reached and 180 ft.
of this had to be drilled through. The next
step was going through St. Peter sand.
When completed the well was 650 feet deep
with 300 ft. of water furnishing ample sup-
ply for private use and for fires.

. The new pipes were laid -and connected
with those running into the tank. The
steam pump formerly used was used to run
the new deep well. Early in December, Geo.
Wedge, president of the village council re-
ported the new deep well was thoroughly
lested and an abundance of water found.

‘He accepted the well on behalf of the vil-

lage of Plainview. The sum of $600.00 was
paid to the Company upon completion of
the contract.

. The following year a pump house was
erected which is the Pamona Pump house
used foday. A Kenion and Hubbel pump



_ 2ack and conncctions were also added to
the equipment at a cost of $406.00. In 1902
the council spent $2400.00 in extending and
placing new mains. In 1908 the Council
voted to change to the use of electricity in
pumping the water and obtained the power
from the Plainview Electric Light and Pow-
cr Company.

The writer found in reading through the
files that Plainview’s dirl streets were wat-
ered regularly and that A. C. Woodcock was
the first person in Plainview to see to it
that this job was done. He rigged up a cart
with a 16 barrel tank he had made and a

sprinkler he had purchased; hitched a team
of horses to the cart and to the delight of

all proceeded to sprinkle Main street and

" other streets as long as the supply of water
would permit. In later years, the city pur-
chased a sprinkling wagon with a large
tank. What a boon it must have been to
have the dust settled. |IA devise such as
that wouldn’t be a bad suggestion for our
present day dust on Main Street. :

For some time past the problem of a
suflicient supply of water has been troubl-

ing the village fathers. The revenue for the

water had not been sufficient to cover the
expense incurred jn.keeping up the pump-
ing station. The consumption had had a de-
cided increase and the revenue had not in-
creased in porportion. When the first pump
was installed it was run but a few hours a
day and in 1917 it required almost contin--
uous operation of two pumps to keep a suf-;

ficient supply. A new ordinance went into|_

effect to conserve the water supply. If
waste continued the city would have to find
the way to furnish a larger supply. New

exploded. Water is free at it’s source but
not when delivered to the faucet under pres-
sure from a deep well. :

A special village election was held May
31, 1917 for the purpose of voting to issue

. Into operation for thé first test on Tues- |

-.of the mechanismi that

"rates were established. The theory that], . St the pumping

“water is as “free as the air” was definitely

and sell bonds in the amount of $11,000 for

improvements to the village water works.'

82 ballots were cast for the issue with 14
opposing. In March that year a 60,000 gal-
long capacity wooden tank was erected on

. the steel tower to replace the old tank that

" had rotted away so badly that it was con-

sidered a hazard..

A new Hannegan two stroke deep well
pump with capacity of 146 gallons per min-

ute was purchased from the Union Mach-
ine Company of St. Paul at a cost of $3,-
042.00 with 256 per cent more pumping

;alzadty than any other pump on the mar-
et. . -

" In 1921 a cooling system was establish-
ed at the pump station. In the years fol-
lowing much  difficulty was encountered in
water supply. In 1932 a check on the pumps
showed them to be working inefficiently.
Both had had hard use and capacity of both
had deminished. Should one of them break
dow1} during the summer period it would
be difficult to supply ordinary water needs.
The greatest hazard of course would be
fires and Plainview had many fire trap
buildings. The need of a new pump was
demonstrated when the fire truck was used
about four hours to clean the streets and

. the tank was nearly empty. Both pumps

were running at full capacity.

The council advertised for bids for an
electrically operated Turbine pump, The big
of the Pamona Company of .California was
accepted and the pump purchased for $3,-
144.50. August F. Johnson and son, Arvid
went to Chicago to get the five ton pump.
The old pumps were_remmoved and the new
pump installed on a concrete setting. The
hew pump required twice the power of the

. old pumps but operated at five times more

efficiency. The new Turbine pump was put

day afternoon, June 7, 1932 at five o’clock.
It required 25 seconds for the pump to
d}'aw the water to the surface, 'During that
time the well went down 10 feet. Many
folks congregated at the well to watch the|
lest and marveled at the eage and quietness
oper. i -
most no vibration, yet a sil;: iggids'g;g}:npgf
waler poured steadily from the pump. At
problem was solved and
bump pumps the water

today the Turbine

you use.

‘In 1983 the council made extensive re:
pairs on the tank. The cement bottom of
the tank caused serious rotting of the low-
er part of the staves. In April 1937 an em-
ergency existed in the water supply'system
and it was deemed manditory that a new
tank 'bg purchased. The contract was let to
the .stsissippi Valley Tank Company to
furnish and erect 8 Red Wood tank. The
present tank of the Plainview Waterworks
system. The steel frame work holding the
tank was reinforced at thig time. In 1944
a new Auxiliary head was purchased from
Crane and Company and installed in the
pump at a cost of $1345.00, The hoops on

" the tank were tightened and the tank paint-

ed. The well shaft was pulled that year and
wqumen found it to be slightly scored; re-:
paired it and replaced it in the well.
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“1 Thought You' d Like

ABOUT OUR LIBRARY

The writer of this column had an inter-
esting experience pursuing the pages of an
old ledger dated 1865, containing Lhe min-
utes of the meetings of the Plainview Li-
brary Association and is indebted to Miss

CGrace Wright for locating the ledger for
her.

From carliest days the residenis of Plain-
view have always shown a very definite in-
terest in cullure. That was exemplified
when those first pioneers began to build a
school house immediately after establishing
their homes that their children might have
the advantage of an education.

The Plainview Library Association was
erganized in January 28, 1866 al a meeling
held at the home of Mr. and Mrs. A. P.
Foster. A set of by-laws and a constitution
were drawn up and adopted. The object of

the association was to promote literavy,,

social and moral culture. Any person wish-

ing to promote these virtues could bechme -

a member. The membership fee was one
dollar per year for men and 60c for ladies
-with dues set at 26c per month. Officers of

the association were a President, two Vice-

Presidents, a Secretary, Treasurer, Librar-.
ian and a standing committee of thrree mem-
bers. Meetings took place on Monday even-
ing of each week at various homes, churches

and at Wilcox hall over the Oziah lecox i

" QGeneral Store. ‘

The President with the assistance of a

standing committee planned literary pro-

_ grams, including lectures, tableaux, discus-

sions on important questions of the day,

. music, plays, dialogues, recitations, debatqg
ete.

Among the 150 members joining Lhe as-
sociation were Messrs and Mesdames T. G.
Bolton, J. J. Butts, J. Burton, H. M. Butts,
Wm. Baxter, G. Carroll, E, S. Case, S. P.
Danforth, Rodman Burchard, A. P. Foster,
A, Y. Felton, C. O. Landon, B. Lawrence,
Dr’s. and Mesdames Gibbs and Tefft, Misses
i Etta Washburn, Emily White, Lizzie Haw-
‘ ley, Ella Foster, Etta Washburn and many

others

Tﬂ Hnﬂw ©ee- by GLADYS MACK

g‘ Officers were elected as follows: Dr.
Teﬂ’t President, Darwin Stuart and Mrs.
N P, Manley, Vice presidents, Secretary,
D E. Gale, Treasurer, T. G. Bolton. Miss
5 lezxe Hawley and Mrs. Darwin Stuart were
i"" named as the executive committee. A com-
mittee consisting of Dr. Gibbs, Hattie
Gibbs, Mary Yale, Delia Clark, Josie Bur-
;- ton, Josephine Lawrence and Wm. Roome
5. were ehosen to solicit members.

*  Robert Smith, grandson of the pioneer,
pJ'amesz J. Butts was chosen as librarian. A
% fee-of ten cents was charged at each meect-
v+ ing. The first book purchasing committee
tWals Dr. Tefft, Rev. Wm. Wild, Rev. Schoe.-
- maker, Rev. Walker, H. P. Wilson, A. P.
5% Foster, T. A. Thompson, J. Baldwin, Mrs.

B. Blain and Mrs. Henry Willard. -

" Among the topics discussed at the Mon-
day evening weekly sessions were, Rail-
- roads, Compulsary School attendance, Tem-
-perance problems, adoption of a uniform set
of school text books and other vital issues .
“: of the day. Among the drama offerings were
I}“A Storm in the Family”, “The Drunkard,”
% “John the Baptist” (a tragedy in 5 scenes)
. Books were purchased and exchanged
. among the members.

e
3
!
g
i

e i ):'*. Ry

In 1879 the first real step in establishing
a Plainvijew Library was taken when the
.Association rented the front rooms of the
- Oziah Wilcox Store, located where the
& Peoples State Bank stands today. Rent on
. the room was $5.00 per month. Carpeting,
* tables, chairs, a stove, book case, etc., were
‘ .a'.ll furnished by various business firms.
. T. J. Cornwell and Dr. Tefft donated the
carpet, B. T. Leninger, the clock, William
* Koenig the curbains, Rodman Burchard the
kerosene lamps, E.' C. Cornwell other fix-
"tures, Wadleigh and Company the chairs.
- Many others donated labor and cash dona-
tions amounted to $149.50 to be used for
the purchase of books and periodicals. Mem-
bers were taxed 50c per quarter. Plain-
view's first Library was the pride and joy
of the villagers. The Library was the scene
of many, entertaining and instructive gath-
erings of people with a keen interest in in-
~ tellectual pursuits and a flair for entertain-

i
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ment and conviviality. These meetings were
continued for several years, and folks en-
joyed the new books, magazines and papers
in the Library. As years went by, however,,
funds were depleted and were hard to re-
place, interest began to lag. Librarians were
difficult to find and other difficulties arose.

At a meeting of the Association Com-

‘ mittee E. A. Paradis, W. A. Pell and Dr.:

Telft at Lhe Plainview Bank on March 6,
1882 the proposition of gelling the furnish-
ings of the library and turning the books
over Lo the Plainview Public School Li-
brary was submitted and acted upon and
Plainview’s first Librany passed out of ex-
istance,

" For several years the posmbxlxtles of an-
other Library was being discussed. No one
seemed to take the initial step, however,
uiitil 1905 when a group of residents organ-
ized again the Plainview Library Associa-
tion and began the task of accumulating
funds to organize the second Library in
Plainview. A comimittee composed of Mes-
dames, A. M. Weeden, C. D. Burchard, G. F.
Sylvester, Miss Zora Lyon and Miss Mary
Lahey were appointed to solicit for mem-
berships to the association. Dues were set
at one dollar per year. Through application
to the State Library Association, fifty vol-
umnes were aceumulated. Because of lack of
a place to ‘house the books they were kept
in Dr. E. E. Smith’s dental office and were
loaned out from there with Dr. Smith in
charge. Plainview’s second Library was
thus established in Dr. Smith’s office.

In 1906 a room in the Koenig brick block
was secured and the books were moved
over there. Etta and Netia Gorrell were

telephone operators at the Greenwood}

Prairie Telephone Company, also lecated in
the Koenig building. They were librarians

in conjunction with their work at the|

switchboard. At that time there were sixty-
one books on the shelves and 120 borrowers
$287.24 had been accumulated in the library
fund. Later another rocom in the Koenig
building was used as a reading room.

" Early in 1908 there was a total of 416
books in Lhe library 363 adult and 17 child-
ren’s books. During that year 85 adult vol-
umes and 60 children’s books were purchas-
ed and one book presented as a gift to the
library making a total of 516 books. The
library was open 306 days that year. Hours
were from 10 a. m. to 11 a. m. and from 4
p. m. to 5 p. m. every day and from 7:30
p. m. to 8:30 p. m. on Saturdays. The’ Read-
ing room was open all day and evening

during the week. There were six periodicals
on file and $90.00 in the library fund.

When the new City Hall was built in 1910
the East front room was designated as a
library and the books were moved over.
Abba and Bessie Gilbert- were librarians.:
Serving on the library board were Dr. E. E.
Smith; J. A. Carley, G. F. Sylvester, C. D.
Bur chard Mrs. Emma Askew, Misses Amy
R. French Mary Lahey and Grace Wright,
At this time a tax of one mill was levied
for Library purposes. Miss Kate Biers was
librarian from 1912 to 1921 when Mrs,
Mary Belsheim became librarian.

In 1925 the need for a larger room and

. a reading room was great and the associa-|

tion secured the large room at the back of
the City Hall for the library and reading

" room.

A report of March 1939 showed a total
of 4,230 books, 1793 borrowers, 22 maga-
zines with a five year file. The association
had formed State Library connections
where material could be obtained on any
subject. A Readers Guide had been added
periodically listing all magazine articles
giving titles, authors and magaines where:
printed and page on which it appeared. The
Library had a good reference section in-

" cluding, history, biography, Bible, religious

books, poetry, philosophy, ethics, ‘sociology,

¢ literary classis, 3 sets of encyclopedias,
- children’s books with selections monthly

from the Literary Guild.
The 1946 report showed 5085 books loan-

_ed for home use, with 813 borrowers listed.
- Volumes at the beginning of 1946 were

Adult 3,055, Juvenile 1,639, Total 4,694. At
beginning of 1947, Adult 3,218 Juvenile
1,702, Total 4,920. Twenty-eight adult
books and 24 Juvenile books have been re-
moved. The library has two newspapers, 20

" periodicals. A three year Periodical file, a

Rental collection and a new set of ‘Ameri-
cana Encyclopedias, Mrs. Many Belsheim is
the Librarian and serving on the board are
E. I1. Lindsey, Bruce Oxton, Mesdames Earl
Harrington, Louis Mundt, W. R. Zabel, C, A.
Venables, L. E. Ryan, Helen Mxrxse, Grace
Wright and Mary Lahey.

In December, 1946 a fire in the City Hall
caused considerable damage to:the Library

- Room. The floor was taken up, new timbers

placed and the flooring replaced and sanded
The wall were cleaned and painted.

The Library in its neat and pleasant sur- |
roundings stands a lasting tribute to those
pioneers who 81 years ago determined that
Plainview should have a. Library.
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“l Thought You'd Like To Enow”

The progress of handling the mail from the early days o the prpsent time is
probably as phenomenal as any of the great studies that have been made in this
great country of ours. And yet, foday, we look forward to even greater progress in
the speed and itypes of service rendered by this governmental communication sYS-
fem. Today we are as anxious for a new postoffice building as those early pioneers

-+ - by GLADYS MACK

were for a little corner in someones home or store where they could send and re-

ceive their mail.—The editor.

ABOUT PLAINVIEW’S POSTOFFICES

Among the many paradoxical hardships
endured by the pioneers coming to Lhis
area was thal of gelling Lheir mail. They
had to go for long perivds of time wilhout
letters, messages and papers. In 1845 «
postoffice was  established at LaCrosse. On
certain days of the week mail bags were
brought up from LaCrosse by boat and left
at Wabasha Prairie, (now the city of Wi-
nona) where they would be picked up by
. settlers who happened to be going that way.
We can well imagine -the thrill of those
pioneers when long awaited mail arrived.
In 1849 a postoffice was established at
Read’s Landing with Mr. Richard’s as post-
master.

When the settlers first arrived at Green-
wood Prairie they were so intent on build-
ing homes and getting themselves safely
. under cover that the problem of getting
mail didn’t worry them. As months went by
however they began to long for letters from
home. There wasn't unuch they could do
about this but wait patiently until some
one happened to be going to Read’s Landing
or Wabasha Prairie.

In 1852 two postoﬂ"u.es were established.
The first one at Mihnesota City with Robert;
Pike Jr. as postmaster and the second at
- Wiabasha Prairie with George Barber as
postmaster and Byron Viets of LaCrosse as
deputy postmaster. The name first given
this postoffice was “Montezuma” but this
was later changed to Winona,

In 1856 the pioneers of this area succ-
ceeded in getting a postoffice at their little
‘8ettlement called Greenville. Alonzo P. Fos-
ter, one of the first seltlers coming to
Greenville and one of thg group that platted

the settlement was made postmaster. The
postoffice was set up in the first store in
Greenville. This store was a branch of the
Richards General Slore at Reads Landing
and Mr. Rodman Durchard was proprietor
and partner. The Burchard family lived up-

stairs in the log cabin store. They also ran
a small hotel in this building to care for
the few strangers who happened to come to
Greenville. The cabin proved much too
small, so Mr. Burchard built a larger one to
be used for the slore.

Mr. Foster was formerly a preceptor at
Troy Conference Academjy in Lhe Bast. Al-
though an educator he was determined to
try his fortune in the agriculture fields in
the Northwest. His wife passed away in
Vermont in 1851 and in 1855 he came with
his little daughter, Anne to Greenwood
Prairie. Anne grew to womanhood here and
married to Thomas G. Bolton. Among Mr.

Fosters possessions was found a deseription

of the country to which he had come to
make his home, which we quole in part.
“Fanned by the gentle breezes of that sum-
mer day, it’s easy grass and fragrant
flowers that God Himself had planted there
when no vandal plow-share had yet dared to
poke its practical nose beneath an inch of
that virgin soil. The broad, fertile unclaim-
ed prairie was all around us and we thought
we had found the Garden of Eden with the
serpent left out. We builf a school house,
20 ft. square, the boards were sawed out
by hand by Mr. Boatman and E. E. Eddy
made the shingles: Miss Anna White
answered the call for a teacher and Rev.
Cochrance, a Congregational minister held
services there. We established a postoffice
and I became postmaster.”

In 1856 M. Foster moved with the rest
of the pioneers -of Greenville to Centerville
and assisted in platting out - that village
The postoffice was moved to Centerville in
1868. There was a postoffice in Winona
County called Centerville and this caused
much confusion in the ‘mails so the name-
was changed to Plainview.

In 1857 our first postmaster Mr. Foster

" sat as a member in the last territorial leg-

islature. In 1866 he sold his property here
and moved to Winona. While there he plat-






and served for 8 years until his
death in 1906, His eight year
term. was nearly finished when
he became critically ill. The ap-
pointment of a succeeding post-
master was delayed due to his
serlous illness When Dr. Waste
became postmaster be purchased
the old fixtures used In the
Lawton Grocery store, The post-
:office was then moved to its pre-
sent location. The building was
built by J. H. Davis Jr. in- 1886
who also built the adjoining
banl ‘building, 1t as through the
efforts of Dr. Waste that rural
routes were established. An old
schedule of mails from that day
reads. Arrives-7T a. m'—I2m via
railroad--2 p. m. via stage. De-
parts—7:40 a. m.~—12:55 p. m.

via railroad—3:15 p. m. via sta,ge_

coach.

George Hall was appointed
| postmaster upon the death of Dr.
Waste. Miss Lena Underwood
became clerk and later Miss
Bertha Thom became a postoffice
employee. Both continued for
many yeéars. In August that year
the postoffice underwent a face
lifting operation. The work-
room was enlarged by moving
the partitions forward. The walls
were painted and wood work
cleaned and varnished.

In 1918 mail cars No. 8 and 7
were taken off and all mail ar-
rived on the noon irain.

Harry - Smith became post-
master in 1913 and served until
19822, It was due to his efforts
that new fixtures were purchas-
ed and installed in 1916. The new
arrangement gave a large lobby
13 ft. by 17 ¢t. equipped with

new all steel fixiures in mah-’

ogony finish. Two writing desks.
were plactd on the Bast wall.,
On the West wall 312 patrons

boxes, 98 small boxes, 80 larg-.

er ones and 16 large drawers.
Window arrangement and doors

were made just as they are to-'

day. Above the fixtures a steel
net work divided the open lob-
by from the work room which’
had been enlarged and arranged

with a systematic arrangement

of drawers and labor saving de-
vices, a new office desk and
parcel post cabinet were sup-
plied. Rural carnier tables w1th
changeable poc}kets with 136 |
compartments were added. The
divisions between the pockets
were .50 arranged. that each pat-

rons name could‘lbe .Inserted be-"
neath "the’ compa?,vtment for .con- -
venience in- . distribution.’ A
stamping table, lptter case, sack:
racks, new safe, tloak and toilet:
room and a vault were among the
new improvements. Previous to
this time all money and stamps
were kept in the bank and the
postmaster and clerk would have
to rush to the bank when they
were needed. The new vault in
the postoffice was a great boon
{0 the postmaster and his help-
er..

Everything was in good con-
dition for the rapid handling of
the mail. In October 1922 the
long sought for bus mail sewvice:
from  Kellogg to- Plainview and
Elgin had finally been granted
and the new routé put into oper-'
ation Monday October 10 and
was scheduled to continue under
‘the contract until June 30, 1923.
C. R. Quiglen of XKellogg was’
the successful bidder. The new’
service carried first and second’
class mail 7 days a week., Mail.
from Wabasha previously re-:
quiring two days!to reach Plain-.
view was received the same day'
mail with the new service. This:
iservice is still in force today!
carrying all types of mail. :
I In 1931 all imail service to:
Plainview and other towns on
lihe IC. and N. 'W. railroad was
! carried by bus. Myron Phillips of
‘Wiabasha drove the bus from
Wabasha making two trips daily
except Sunday. The first to EI-
gin and back and the second to
Rochester and tback. The morn-.
ing bus bringing ‘all afternoon
and night mail. The new service
gave Plainview three incoming
and outgoing mails where there
were formerly only two and
three parcel posts both incoming
and outgoing, where there were
formerly only one,

W. G. Mack was the next
postinaster. Mr. Mack was suc-
ceeded by 'Chester Gallagher.
Upon the death of Mr. Gallagher
in 1941 Mike Lenoard was ap-
pointed active postmaster and
in 1942 received his permanent
appointment to the positlon he
now holds.
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“I Thought You'd Like To Know”

This history of Fairview park shows well the foresight in long range planning
and the will to do, of Plainview’s business men of 1927. Without doubt those whose
names have been mentioned in this story
as hard in their efforts to make Plainview the progressive village it has always been
had their critics and scoffers. As in 1827, those who favor a construction of this
progress are beset by critics and scoffers, Let it be our fervent wish that a few
years hence a rewriting of this story will include a completion of this beauitful park

—so well planned.—The Editor.
ABOUT FAIRVIEW PARK

With the idea of accumulating funds for
a much talked about and hoped for athletie
park for Plainview the Commercial Club
undertook a large project in 1927 and due
to their efforls on that memorable day
Plainview new has one of the finest athletic
parks in this section of the stale.

On July 4, 1927, the town of Plainview

"under the sponsorship of its Commercial '

Club entertained one of the largest crowds
in all of its history at a celebration held at
the fairgrounds. Over 7000 people attended
The gate reccipts showed 5000 paid admis-
sions. Children were admitled free. A con-
stant stream of cars poured into the town
from morning until night.

A parade of beautiful and cleverly de-
signed flpats was one of the features of the
day. The First National Bank float will be
remembered as a huge birthday cake with
twenty-five candles in honor of the twenty-
fifth birthday of that institution. Carpen-
ter and Goetz, Margaret Appel. Millinery
and other companies also drove outstanding
floats.

The school and town bands and the Am-
erican Legion Drum (Corp played and
gaarched in the parade. There was an ele-
phant, giraffe and clowns to please the
children. A program of sports, horse and
mule races, a baseball game between Wab-
asha and Kellogg were included in the
events. The drumn corp slarted the even-
ings entertainment with an exhibition in
front of the grandstand.

A gigantic pageant under the direction
of Miss Arvilla Murray with all of the tal-
ent of the whole town taking part was pre-
gented. Starting with the history of the
country before the arrival of the white man
the scenes carried the history on through
the arrival of the first white settlers to the
Boston Tea Party and the signing of the
Declaration of Independence. The gorgeous
costuming, stage settings and beauty of
the bageant will always be remem-bered.

and many others who worked equally

s = « by GLADYS MACK

Mike Leconard as Abe Lincoln, Ed Lindsey
as the village blacksmith with John Kﬂoughf
and others: bringing in the horse to be shod/
Mrs. Loney riding on the white horse s'ing:
ing the “Indian Love Call” all contributed
greatly to the humor and beauty of the
show. A tableaux ‘“The Spiril of 76" was
presenled. . G. Burlon played the drum
and Spen Dickerman of Viola the fife. Both
dressed in colonial costume marched to the
old time fife and drum melodies. The pro-
gram concluded with the whole cast form-
ing the American Flag. Fireworks and a

- dance concluded a jamr packed day of festiv-
it dties. -

Lunch stands and olher concessions were

* conducted all day and evening by the var-

ious organizations of, Plainview. One stand
used over 200 Ibs. of weimers. Profits of

‘ the celebration went to the Commercial

Club with amounts given to the City Band
and the Drum Corp. The crowds so far ex-

~ qeeded expectations that folks were  al-

most at their wits end to secure supplies
to carry them through ilhe day. When final
accounting was made the Commercial Club
was richer by well over two thousand dol-
lars,

This fund was set aside for the purchase
of an athletic park and remained intact
until March 24, 1939 when the search for
property for the park came Lo an end. The
commercial club purchased a seven acre plot
of land located north of Freemont street.
The property was formerly the C. H. Ritter
estate. A. C. Woodcock had previously ob-
tained an option on this property and he
made his option available to the park beard
and the purchase was made. The park board
consisting of John Xeough, A. C. Woodcock
and Dr. Mahle presented ihe property to
the Village Council and a levy was made
by the Council to pay the small balance due.
The Village Council and the Commercial
Club thus united to provide this much need-
ed improvement to the town.

C. A. Faunce, Minneapolis engineer made



.2 map of the project. The dimensions were
shown 625 ft.xb632 ft. with an additional
lot of 60 ft.x127 ft. The football field 360

ft.x160 ft. with width across the running.

track 288 ft., The baseball diamond 90 ft.
squarce with outficld. A space 42x108 ft. for
tennis courts and a space for a swimming
pool and bath house were provided. These
latter projects have never been developed
as yet but it is hoped that some day they
too will be a part of beautiful Fairview
park.

Under the airection of Mr. Faunce dur-

ing the spring and summer of that year|
the whole field was graded and leveled, re-|.
quiring a cut on the south side of nearly| .

ten feel at its highesi jpoint, the deepest
fill required was dPout--ten foot in the
northwest cornler. A%slielter belt of fast
growing trees was planted along the West
and North sides. In the fall extensive work
was done on the Park. John Keough served
as chairman of the park board committee
developing this project. A draining system
*'was installed on the athletic field, 2500 ft.
of pipe were placed, 3000 square yards of
dirt were spread, 120 lbs. of Kentucky blue
grass was planted. Top soil was laid to a

depth of six inches over the entire area.|

More than 83,000 cubic feet of ‘dirt was
handled in leveling: the center of the, field
and filling it in with the top dressing.

The football field and track, two kitten
ball diamonds and a baseball diamond were
all laid out and.marked.

When all of these projects were camplet-
ed in October the next step was to secure
lighting for the fields. A meeting of the
Park Board and committee, Arvid Johnson,
chairman, Howard Zabel, Wayne Lance,
Peter Rogers, James Mulligan and Myles
Peterson was called for the purpose of find-
ing the most economical way to light the
football and diamond ball fields. They stud-
jed the problem and made observations of
otlher fields. Thomas Roach of Interstate
Power Company supplied information and
together they worked out a plan whereby
the expected $800 cost of lighting the fields
might be reduced. :

The Junior Chamber of Commerce estab-
lished a fund for the lighting project- by
donating one hundred dollars.

A committee of five members, Arvid

Johnson, Don Harrington, Howard- Zabel,’
Francis Taylor and Peter Rogers were giv-:

en full authority to work out the necessary
details of financing and buying the equip-

ment. Plainview business men pledged $585 |

.to be paid back in yearly dividends. Supt.
.S, L. Johnson: pledged the proceeds of the
" Maroon and Gold Ball, to be held ‘September

. met Zumbrota. Both teams playing under

‘the intermission period. In the glow of the’

- Joyce Berger, as majorette gave a clever

20, the basketball game, Plainview vs.
Rochester, and a donation from the schools
activity fund combined totaling $100.. He
further pledged the school’s support in co-
operating to the fullest extent in activities

to raise additional funds should they be
needed.

A group of five members, Jay LaRocque,
Glenn Richmond, Donald Pille, Milton Vol-
lenweider and Walter Briese vol nteered to
aid A. C. Woodcock in correcting;some eros-
ion on the new field. In August 1940 night
foolball ahd kitten ball games became neaxr-
er to a reality with the playing fields laid
out and positions for light poles marked. A
crew of J. C. members dug the holes and
with the assistance of the Interstate Power
Company. set up the poles. { Co

TheJ. C.’s sponsored a contest to select a
name for the park with a prize of two sea-
son tickets to the home football games as
inducement. Among all of the names sug-
gested the name Fairview sent in by Ev-
erett Anderson was chosen.

Everything was in readiness for the dedi-
cation ceremonies and the initial football
game under lights, ,Friday evening, Sept.
20. In spite of an all afternoon rain and
showers almost up to play time scheduled
evenis took pl:a'.ge. ) :

Plainview’s High School Football team

lights for the first time. The team under
Coach Shirley Held consisted of nine letter
men, Pat Carpenter, leader, Michael Mason, ;
Arthur Gessner, Dalton Kroening, Henry'
Wischow, William Nettekoven, James Kru-
ger, Bugene Erding, Leslie Carpenter, other’
players were Kenneth Kroening, Tom Ly-
ons, Joe Markus and Halvor Wischow. The |
score was 9-0 in favor of Zumbrota.

The dedication ceremonies took. place at!

“ew and perfect lighting system the P

School Band marched down the field play-
ing the National Anthem. Marching to their
own music they formed the letter Z and P.

display of baton twirling. John Keough,
presided at the dedication ceremonies and
presented the new lighting system to the
town in behalf of the Park Board, the Com-
mercial Club, the J. C.’s and the local school
board. Mayor A. E. Becker accepted the
gift in behalf of the citizens of Plainview.



Sam Buron of the Minneapolis
Junior Chamber of Commerce

addressed the assembly. Mr.
Keough 'speaking on behalf of
the Commercial club spoke dn
commendation of the fine work
and generosity of Engineer C. A.
(Faunce who was present at the
ceremonies. Mayor Becker offic-|
iated at the maming of the Park.

On Sunday, May 25, 1941 the
first baseball game was played
on the new and completed dia-|
mond. Since then hundreds of
games have been played and en-'
joyed and many athletic events
of all kinds have taken place at'
Fairview Park. This past sum-!
mer archery targets were placed
and considerable interest shown |
in that sport. Night kittenball
games also ‘wepe played and it]
;is hoped these activities will con-
tinue again this year.







building was read for occupancy. ‘Lhej
Chauncy Cornwell family moved from theg
upstairs in the old store to a little home,
east on Main Street. When the new build-'

. ing was completed the old building wasl
moved to the lot where Kruger’s Pool Hall
is now located and torn down when that
structure was erected.

The new building, 80 ft. x 75 ft. was
completed late in 1901. The two story build-

- ing of brick was modern in every detail and
" built of the finest material obtainable at
" that time. The ware house at the rear was
also built at this time. East main street
assumed a metropolitan appearance with
" the new hardware store, Koenigs large red
brick - store, Duerre’s large store and the
new Erding building. The village had every
reason to be proud of its splendid advance-
ment. Plainview had forged ahead until it
had become one of the principal trading
points in Wabasha and adjacent counties.
Wooden structures were disappearing and
being replaced by modern brick buildings.
In 1901 over $34,876 was spent on build-
ings and improvements. The Koenig, Duerre
Cornwell and other stores carried ‘immense
stocks of good, more than was carried in
towns two or three tlmes as large as Plam-
view, Toemh : D '

. Alfred. C. Cornwell brother of E R. Corn-

© well was tinsmith and plumber at the store

" and Mr. Cornwell’s son, Glenn was also em-

ployed at the store. Clerking at the store at

. various times were Charles Marshall, Geo.
Stoddart and Robert Crary.

Mr. Chauncy Cornwell lived only a few
months after the new store was completed.
He died in 1901. Following his death Elijah
became sole owner of the company and car-
ried on a prosperous hardware businéss
there for over sixteen years. The upstairs
was rented by the Masonic Lodge for Lodge
rooms.

In 1917 Mr. Cornwell sold out- to Ralph
Murray who operated the store until 1923
when he sold it to Leslie Carpenter and
August Goetz. They operated it until 1936

* when Arthur Becker purchased the build-

“ing and business and continued in this
prosperous enterprize until 1944. His health
failed and he was forced to retire. Clarence
! Cook is the present proprietor and operates
i under the name of the Pla1nv1ew Hard-
ware Store.
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tached {o this young man from the South
and could forsee that he would make a
successful merchant. Ilis heallh was fail-
ing and he depended more and more on
Frank. In the sumimer of 1875 I'rank be-
canie dissatisfied and longed to return

home. He went Lo Georgia and remained
there for a few months. In December he’

was called back Lo Plainview because of the
serious illness of Mr. Wilcox. A few days
after his return Mr. Wilcox died. On Jan-
uary 12, 1876 Frank re-opened the Wilecox
store and operated it in the interest of the
Wilcox family. In June that year he pur- .
chased the business. The thriving business
grew rapidly under his management and in
1881 he rented and moved. into the spac-
ious brick building (now Leonard’s Groe-
ery) built by A. Y. Felton in 1879. Frank
Cornwell could truly be called a self made
man, Ile ecame to this area with but little
money and in a few years was well on the

road to financial success.

The beautiful new store, neatly arranged
carried a {ine slock of merchandise, dry
gouds, men’s wear, ladies and men’s shocs,

_lace curtains, dishes, carpeting, gruceries

and hundreds of other ilems. A little frame
building on the west side was used as a
grocery department. Mr. Cornwell built a
wooden ramp connecling the two buildings.
In 1898 Mr. Cornwell tore this building
down and built a large brick building in its
place, (Lhe present Ganible Store). The new
building connecled wilh the older one with
a large opening making one grand big store.
Dry goods were placed in the west half and
crockery, shoes, etc. were on the east side.

In 1899 Mr. Cornwell built a large ware-|
" house at the rear of the first building, !

greatly enlarging the grocery department.
Rugs and carpets were upstairs on the
rear west side. ‘A stairway at the rear
west side led to the upstairs rooms. Mr.

Cornwell had a large-billiard table in the

west front room .and many a game was
played there. Among those enjoying the
Sunday afternoon games were Mr. Corn-
well, Charles Hamlin, H. C. Oliverson and
Jack Storey. The rest of the entire second
Tloor was used for storage. A large crock-
ery department was on the east side of the
store and what a department it was. Doz-
ens of sets of dishes in various patterns
could Dbe:found there. Mr. Cornwell bought

the very choicest merchandise the mar- .

kets aifmded Many homes 1n Plamvxew

and area have cupboards stocked with
dishes from the Cornwell store. In those
days good dishes, were given away as pre-
miwms and were stamped with the name
Ii. R. Cornwell Company. The basement
under Lhe entire building was used as stor-
age. A tremendous amount of merchandise
was slored in the Cornwell store. George
Bickman was buyer in the dry goods de-
partment from April 1887 to Sept. 1901.

; .

In the early days farmers made many of
their store purchases in trade for butter,
grain, cordwood, poultry ete. Mr. Cornwell
would remarket the ‘grain and resell the
other products. The lot in the rear of the
Cornwell store. was usually stacked with
piles of cord wood. Mr. Cornwell, although
a bachelor was always interested in the

- children of the community. In 1900 he pre-

sented a drawing book to each child in the
Plainview -School. The children were to
color Lhe pu.tmes and return them to the
store. Prizes were given to those whose

. books were found to be the neatest work
* and most pleasing colorg used. The first

prize was a two pound can of Chase and

* Sanborn Seal Brand Coffee and the second
- prize a one pound can of' Chase and Sanborn
" “Buffalo Chop Tea.” We doubt if the child-

ren enjoyed the coffee and the tea but no

" doubt their parents did and the children

i

: had the fun of participating in the contest.

Frank Cornwell died July 27, 1812 at

* the age of 76 years. The death of this suc-
" cessful pioneer merchant was a disinct loss
© to Plainview. His personality was:- woven
" into the very fibre of the town. He played
- an important part in all civic affairs. Even

today many early day civic projects in
which he took leading parts-stand as monu-
ments to the good he contributed to this
comniunity.

In 1913 ‘the Cornwell store underwent
great changes under the management sof
Mr. Thomas A. Askew Sr., husband of M.
Corawell’s neice (Emma) who still makes
her home in Plainview. New . glass floor
cases were installed, new window arrange-
ments, a bookkeepers office was built in the
center of the store and a managers office
in the rear. A ladies dressing room was
built and three way mirrors graced the
room. Ladies read-to-wear garments were
being manufactured and added to the Corn-
well merchandise. The ladies reveled in the
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new garments that they did nat
have to make themselves and the
mirrors. Seats were built around
a large post in the store with!
mirrors above them, Arno Hahn!
became manager of the large
shoe department. The crockery
department was moved to the
basement, enlarged and an at-
tractive display room was ar-
ranged.

The Masonic Lodge rented the
apstairs west rear rooms and
used them for lodge room.s

Following World War T, Thom-
as Askew, Jr, returned to Plain-
view and later took over the
management of the <Company.
After a few years he discontin-
ued all departments except the
grocery which he operated for a
while and then sold out to Dave
Leonard. This marked the end
of a vast merchandising enter-
prize that was carried on for
over a half century. Mr. Leon-
ard remodeled the .store and
stocked it with groceries. A. A.
Bartz's electric shop and a small
Gamble Siore were housed in the
other building.

In 1945 Dave [Leonard
and Elmer KXoepsell purchased
the building. The former oper-;
ates a ‘grocery store and the lat-!
ter a large Gamble store. The:
Koepsell family. -live upstairs
over the' Gamble .Store and the
American Legion Rooms are
above the Leonard Grocery. !

']
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“T Thought You'd Like To hnow” --- wcuaovs wace
-ﬁécut 'fﬁe _/?altcn':l ﬂzuy éampany

A Diary written Ly a young school boy
during the winter of 1855 is the impetus
prompling the writing of Lhis story. It was
written by Thomas G. Bolton, pupil at“the
first district school in Wabashaw in pain-
staking boyish script. The pages recorded
happenings at the school, church services,
debates, ete., atlended by him. Almost
every day’s cronology ended with “Chopped
some wood tonight”. One page ended with
“We had a good school today. It was very
pleasant. I hope I improved by it,” The
final pages of the Diary. were written in
short hand.

Wabashaw at that time was a mere trad-
ing post and stopping place for fur traders
and voyagers. The surrounding area was a
vast wilderness. Dakots Indians were num-
erous and their teepees scattered in every
direction. They were quite peaceable with
the whiles but intense hatred existed be-
tween ithe Dakotas and the Chippewa’s in
the north.

The diary revealed that one could not be
sure of the Indians. Two men were passing
in a boat just as a Sioux Indian aimed to
fire at them another man passing by grab-

- bed his gun and broke it on a stump. Thomas

witnessed the hanging of the Indian to a
tree. Dusky forms of Indians might be- ex-
.pected to walk in on the settlers at any
lime or be found- peering in the windows
of the cabins. They usually came begging
for food or cosh-pop, the Indian term for
ten cents,

The school was the Tirst district school in
-Wabasha County. IL was taught in a log
building located on “The Point”. The build-
ing had been brought down the river from
Mendota in 1842 by Falber Augustin Ra-
voux of St. Paul (o be used as a Catholic
Chapel. It was also used as the school house

and the first newspaper in Wabasha County -

‘was printed there. Thomas wrote in his
diary that the school house was so cold
that the pupils and their teacher, Mr. H. B,
Potter had to huddle near the wood stove'to
keep warni,

Thomas Bolton was born in 1843 z}t T.o-
gan, Ohio, Following the death of his talher

Graham Dollon, his mother, Nancy Miller
Bolton and her children, Ruth, Martha,
John and Thomas moved Lo Cleveland where
they lived for a short time and then she
decided to take her little brood and go West.
In these days of modern comforts it is hard
to realize how that pioneer mother and her
small children could withstand that long
perilous journey by oxen team and boat.
They arrived in Wabasha tired and worn
from the ‘hardships of the trip and decided
to settle there. When Thomas was fourteen
Years old he thought he should seek em-

“ployment and thelp out with the family fin-

ances so he hired out as a cabin boy on a
steamer on the Mississippi. While working
on this job he made the acquaintance of a
Mr. Crowley, pioncer druggist of Wabasha
wiho became his good friend and benefactor.
At sixteen years of age, Mr. Crowley hired
him as druggist’s helper. Alter four years
employment there Mr. Crowley opened a
branch slore in Plainview and Thomas was
hired as manager. That marked the begin-
ning of bhe drug store business in Plain-.
view. All newspaper records of that period
were lost in a fire and happenings of that
day are bevond the veach of memory for
Plainview residents so we cannot state just -
where the Crowley Drug Store was located
on Main Street. Thomas operated the storce
for two years, returned to Wabasha and a
short while later purchased a store of his
owh in Eyota. In 1874 he married Ella Fos-
ter, daughter of a prominent Plainview
pioneer and in 1878 returned to Plainview
and became a partner of George LaRue in
his newly established drug store in the
building where the Eggers Grocery Store is
located. In a short while he bought out Mr..
LaRue and became sale owner and proprie-
tor of the Bolton Drug Co. He moved the
goods to a building on the lot where Arthur
Holst now has a grocery store.

The shelves of the store were lined with
patent medicines of every kind and descrip-
tion. Cure-alls for all types of ailments.
Some of the medicines were manufactured
by Mr. Bolton. He wished to advertise these
products and as there was no newspaper in
the village he decided to start one.
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He rented a room on the second floor of
the Grove Machinery Company, a building
oceupying the block from the lot where Ros-
enbergs Shoe Shop is now located South to
the street intersection. This immense :build-g
ing was destroyed by fire and Mr. Bolton
then erected the present Rosenberg Shoe
Shop to be used as his print shop.

'I‘hel newspaper was called The Plainview
News. It’s columns were devoted mostly to
advertisements of patent medicines and
their miracle curings. The bulk of its news
were testimonials of cures obtained by
people taking the medicines. There were’
bits of local news, business changes, obit-
uaries and weddings but the paper was
largely devoted. to pa.t'ent medicines.

Mr. Bolton had various interests other
than the drug store. He became Plainview
agent for the Laird Norton Lumber Com-
pany of Winona and operated that Company
for many years. He purchased a large farm
near the abandoned village of Greenville
and slocked- it. with blooded stock. This
marked the beginning of scientific farming
in this area. He was the first farmer to un-
dertake raising purebred stock on Green-
wood Prairie. He believed that farm-
ing and lumbering go hand in hand
to lay the foundations of civilization
and develop it's sources of wealth. Much
credit for securing an Electric Light Plant
in Plainview goes to M. ‘Bolton. Through-
out his life he worked for the betterment
of Plainview. His vital personality was_ fus-
ed into almpst every undertaking in the
village. His beautiful red brick home, now
the home of Mr. and Mrs. Frank Kruger,
was the scene of many educational, relig-
ious and social gatherings. He was a mem-
ber of the Masonic and Oddfellow Lodges,
an ardent member and worker in the Meth-
odist Church and the Greenwood Prairie

Old Settlers Association.

In 1908 the Bolton Drug Store underwent
a great change. New hard maple flooring
replaced the old wide boards and new fix-!
tures, .the old shelves. Cases with sliding
doors were installed. A new prescription
case with large glass mirror, side mirrors
and ornamental shelves for display were
added. Bolton’s newly remodeled Drug
Slore was a nice addition fo the village.
Many new and amazing products were plac-
ed on the shelves. His sons, John and Miller
returned from College and took their places
as clerks in their father’s store. Gradually
old Mr. Bolton retired from the store and
devoted his remaining days to his other in-
terests and to his home. His pioneer moth-
er, who blazed the trail with him from Ohio
to Wabasha County and endured hardships
far beyond our imaginings lived her retros-
pective years in the comfort of her son’s
home. Mr. Bolton died in 1917. -




“I Thought You'd Like To Enow”
-ﬂéaut Oux .ﬂoy .S’coatj o'

Over 2,000,000 Cub Scouts, Boy Scouts
and Senior Scouts observed the 37th an-
niversary of the Boy Scouts of America
this past week wilh dinners, special
church services, Courfs of Honor and
other events. Plainview Boy Scouls will
present a Court of Honor at the School
Auditorium on Monday evening, Feb. 24
followed by an informal feed. 1947 marks
the beginning of the Thirty-second year
of Scouting in Plainview.

Great changeb ha.ve taken place since
ury when Scoutmg was flrst begun in

America but the principles of Scouting,
reaourse[ulnesq, self control, thrift, cour-
age;, and all virtues that make for beller
manhood remain the same.

In 1905 Daniel Carter, Beard orgamz—
ed & group of Boy Scouts and called the
group the “Sous of Daniel Boone”. Each

officer was given the title of a famous -

scout, Daniel Boone, Davy Crockett, Kit
Carson and others. About this same time
Ernest Thompson Seton formed an organ-
ization and called it “Wood Craft In-

dians”. In 1910 this organization joined .

with the “Sons of Daniel Boone”. At this
time Lord Baden Powell, an Eng. Army
Officer in South Africa had been con-
cerned for some time at the complete
ignorance of newly arrived soldiers on

such basic necessities as personal hygiene '

self reliance and simple observation of
mature. To correct this he organized
groups to meel after regular tours of
duty and taught them basic principles
of Scouting. The organization of Scout-
ing has been attributed to Lord Powell
but he denied that he was the father of
the movement saying that the ideas came
%o him after 'reading American articles
en the subject. He stated that he wished
% be called an uncle of ‘Scouting and
mot its father.

Much credit- for organizing and pro-
moting the movement in America goes
%o William D. Boyce, a Chicago news-
paper man. The movement which ade-
quately met the needs of both youths and
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parents spreafi rapidly in- America, Italy,
France, Germany, Australia, Cliina and
South American republics. Troops ' were
organized with amazing rapidity.

The first troop was organized in

- Plainview in 1915 when Rev. Burton L.

Hoffman, pastor of the Church of Christ,
Ross P. White and a Scout Committee

. eomposed of G. H. Dickman, C. D. Burch-
“ard and F. D. Washburn

organized
Plainview Troop No. 57. Rev. Hoffman
became Scoutmaster and Mr. White as-
sistant. The troop, made up of boys aged
eleven years and older was organized
Into three Patrols.
Patrol were Paul Venables, leader; Paul

. Jacobs, assistant leader; Frank Muleahy,
" troop scribe; Byron Smith, Harold Oliv- .
" erson, Arthur Holst, Louis Boehlke and -
: Lloyd Arnold. The Silver Fox Patrol,
" Harry Larson, leader, Malcolm Smith,

assistant leader, Harry Nunamaker, Geo.
Nelson, Malcolm Weigel and Caleb Schrie-

ber. The Pony Patrol was composed of

boys 11 years old. Glenn Carpenter, Ed-
ward  Hostettler, Lloyd Bennett and
Royal Nunamaker.

The troop held an Ice Cream Soczal on
the School Grounds Saturday evening,
July 31, 1945 to supply working funds
for the troop. They took their tenderfoot
tests and made plans for their first
camping trip at Camp Schmoker.

On February 25, 1916 the Scouts and
their Dads enjoyed a banquet on their
first anniversary, The tables were decor-
ated with the National Colors, Place
cards were bronze tenderfoot badges in-
scribed with the motto, “Be Prepared’.
Favors were small American Flags. A
program followed consisting of speeches
by Rev. Hoffman, Mayor T. G. Moore and
the members of the Committee; Violin
Solo by .Joe Graner; Reading by Wm.
Reifkogel; Address of National Scout
President. Colin H. Livingston, read by
Lyle Swanson. Humorous reading by Al-
fred DBurkhardt; Report of Summer
Camp, Malcolm Smith; Demonstrations
of First Aid work, making stretchers
bandaging, etc. Nine scouts formed a

- pyramid with Louis Boehlke, the littlest

geout topping and waw{i_n}g the Flag Cock

Members of Owl .

'i



tighting and leg wrestling concluded the
demonstrations.

A total of $410.25 had been accumulat-
ed during the year {hrough ice cream
socials, a movie, basket socials, and
county fair projects. Expenditures buy-
ing suits and other eauivment totaled

$401.90, leaving a ba]ance of $8. 35 in the
treasury.

In September 1916 the scouts inaug-
erated the gathering and selling of waste
paper to provide funds' for. summer
camps. Rev. Hoffman entered: the service

in 1917 and was sent to the Great Lakes.

This was a serious loss to the troop as
* he had been a wonderful leader. Under
his eflicient and understanding guidance
the troop had made great progress. Mr.
Hardin took over the troop for a few
months and in the fall, Rev. H, J. Hill
pastor of the Church of Christ became
Scoutmaster. ,
Scouting in Plainview became inactive
for a few years. They let the charter
lapse and all ratings were lost.. In June
1924 Scoutmaster Rev. H. D. Bossuet,
pastor of Methodist Church with C, W.

Erlandson reorganized under a national -

charter. Funds were depleted during the

inactivity and Plainview businessmen -

came to the rescue providing funds for-

the summer camp at the State Park. Ev~

eryone enjoyed the outing in spite of the
scare of the near drowmng of Milton
Schwantz, "

In October, Mr. Mau became assxstant )

Scout Master, replacing Mr. Erlandson.
The troop camped at West Indian Creek
near Appel's mill. Henry Nedrelow gave
three prizes for tests which included K.
P. duty, conduct in camp, and interest in
Scout study. A fountain pen was won
by Francis Taylor for being the best all
round scout. Reed Greethurst won an
eversharp pencil for having the best gen-
eral knowledge of scoutwork. A gold
- faced pocket comb was the prize for the
best essay on nature study. We were un-
able to find the name of the winner of
this prize:

Once again Scouting became inactive
until 1929 when Rev. Martin, pastor of
the Church of Christ. reorganized the
troop. Members of the troop were John

Boehlke, Lester Boehlke, Samuel Sloggy,

Woodrow Toner,

Nunamaker, Roscoe Carpenter, Cecil Her-
ron, Leslie Lance, Millard . Boie, Bruce

- Peck, Norman King, John McFarlin, Rob- !

George Fisk, Donald
Harrington, Orlando .- Johnson, Kenneth'

> ert Zabel, Franklin Washburn, Stanley

Allen, Donald DeWitt
Christison.

In 1933 Mr. Bornemann, Supermtend-
ent of Plainview School answered the call
for a Scoutmaster. Donald Harrington
became his assistant. A program was in-
augurated designed to .develop in the
boys greater responsibility for providing
for his own wants, proper attitude
toward work and appreciation of values.
An out door camp under the leadership
of their own officers was established.
The Plainview Commercial Club took over !
the sponsorship of the troop. Julius West-
by, High School Athletic Coach was camp
supervisor 'when the scouts camped that
year at Lake Emlly near St. Peter.

In 1936, Frank McGough became |
Scoutmaster with Neil Lance and Gordon
Allen as assistants. James Keough Eug-
ene Lehnertz and Allan Harrington were
Patrol Leaders. They organized the
Fourth- Patrol. The troop - camped at
Kamp Kahler near Rochester with ex-
penses again paid by the Plainview busi--
ness men. The troop of thirty members
under Frank MeGough's ° ‘leadership be-
came one of the most active in this area

+ They camped at Frontenac, Crystal
Springs at Ebow’s resort at Faribault.
Boys had to await vacancies to become
members. Older scouts were reluctant to
leave the troop to make place for younger
ones. The five years under Frank’s lead-
ership were the brightest spots in all of-
Plainview’s Scouting history. The troop
enjoyed many outings on the. Mississippi
and made rapid advancements. When
Frank left to study for the 'priesthood.
Alton Bergh, a young Plainview lawyer
succeeded him with Neil Lance again as
assistant. Mr. Bergh efficiently served
the troop and carried out the principles
established by lhis precedessor until 1940
when he went to St. Charles to begin

" private practice of law. Plainview's
Scouts lost another fine leader.

Dr. Race came to the réscue and with
George Gessner as scribe served the
troop faithfully for about a year and a
half. The Scout committee consisted of :
D. M. Ferguson, S. L. Johnson, J. E. :

"Keough and Arthur Wempner.

The troop was inactive for a few years
and in 1945 was again activated ‘with
Neil Lance, Wm. Bates and Charles Dick--
man assistants. Ervin Schrieber, Junior
assistant, Dale Wood, . Senior Patrol

and Charles




Leader, other pairol leaders Eu-|
gene Goetz and Don Schoewe and|
Robert Montgomery as Scribe.
The troop enjoyed overnight,
hikes, afternoon jaunts, practic-!
ing wood - craft, fire -‘buildlng,l
cooking 'etc. Among the success-
ful projects of the troop so far
have been Becuring a room of
their own in the City Hall, and
collecting scrap paper and a
Dart Stand on Lakeside Day.

They will hold a Court
of Honor at the Plainview
High School ‘Auditorium on
Monday ,evening, Feb. 24 with
parents. of the scouts and mem-
bers of the Commercial Club and
their wives as special guests. Mr.
Eckstrand, area scout executive
will be the speaker of the eve-
‘| ning. Rev. Stratton will give the
benediction. ‘A. \A. Burkhardt will
speak in behalf of tihe iroup
committee. Lyle Spooner ,com-
mander of Wm. Allen Post of
| the Amerioan Legion will present
the {roop with a large American
Flag ‘With the complimenis of
|{the Post and Orin Denzer will
| present- the troop with a troup
Flagy the ' gift. of the Plainview
Commercial. Club. :

The Band - will play. Awards
and merit badges will be pre-
sented by-Ted Zabel, Wim. Bates,
Charles-Dickmian and Neil Lance,
James Goetiz is ihe ‘troop bugler.




“I Thought Ynu’d Like To Know”

-géoat -gmuux[

In the spring of 1919 World War I was
devastating the world and our soldiers were
falling by thousands among the poppies that
blossomed in crimson glory and abundance
on the battle fields of France and on the
graves of our loved ones. Returning soldiers
brought back visions of these crimson

fields engraved indelibly on their hearts.
The little flower spontaneously became the
memorial flower for World War dead.

Colonel Joel McCrae of the Canadian forc-
es composed a beautiful poem that will live
forever in the hearts of all mankind.

“In Flander Fields”

. In Flanders Fields the poppies blow

Between the crosses row on row,
That mark our place; and in the sky
Mhelarks, still bravely singing, fly,
Scarce heard amid the guns below.

We are the dead. Short days ago

"We lived,-felt dawn, saw sunset glow
ILoved and were loved, and now we lie
In Flanders Fields :

Take up our quarrel with the foe;

To you, from failing hands, we throw
‘The torch; be yours to hold it high
If ye break faith with us who die

We shall not sleep, though poppies grow
in [Flanders Fields.

Miss Moina Michael of Athens, Georgia
who had served overseas on the Y.M.C.A.
staff distributed hand made poppies to men
attending the 26th Conference in New York
City in 1918. She was later decorated for
war serviceg with the distinguished Service
Medal of the American Legion Auxiliary.
'Hand made poppies were sold by American
Legion Posts of Milwaukee just before
Memorial Day, 1920 for the -purpose of
securing funds for disabled veterans.

The poppy was adopted as official mem-
orial flower of the Georgib, Department of
the American Legion Auxiliary in August
11920 and Georgia delegates were instructed
to present a resolution to the American
Legion National convention in Cleveland to
- be held in September that year to make the
poppy the official memorial flower of the
national organization. '

To Mrs. Mary Hanesy of Milwaukee goes
the honor of originating the idea of selling
poppies as a means of raising funds for
World War Veterans rehabilitation work

and in 1932 she received a certificate of
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Poppy Day |

merit from the American Legion Auxiliary
for originating the sale of poppies for ‘wel-
fare work. '

At the American Legion Convention in
Cleveland, September 27-28-29, 1920 a reso-
lution was passed 1o adopt the poppy as
memorial flower of Lhe American Legion
throughout the nation. The American Le-
gion Auxiliary was organized in 1921 and
one of its first official acts was to make
the poppy its wofficial memorial flower and
at the first National Convention of the
Augxiliary in Kansas City in October, 1921
promoted the sale of poppies for the sole
purpose of vett)rans relief work.

_The Salurday previous lo Memorial Day
was set aside as national poppy day and the
nation-wide sale of memorial poppies be-
gan in 1921, At first silk poppies made in
France by French widows and orphans were
used. In 1922 a decision was made to give
the work of making the poppies to Ameri-
can veterans in the veteran hospitals and
to pay them for their work. The first pop-
pies made by American veterans were made
in the hospitals of Minnesota. The fabric
poppy was eliminated and the crepe paper
poppy adopted.

The American Legion gave the Auxiliary
complete charge of the national poppy pro-
gram. Late in the fall each year ithe manu-
facture of poppies is begun by disabled vet-
erans in 80 government hospitals all over
the United States and in special convales-
qegxt workshops maintained by the Auxiliary
and is continued through the winter and
spring months, On National Poppy Day the )
sale of poppies takes place on the streets.

The work of making poppies is a God send
to hundreds of disabled veterans. They are
paid for the flowers they make and if not
too badly disabled can earn a fair day's
wages without harmful over-exertion. For
many veterans it is the only possibility of
earning money during the year. They are
happy to be self supporting rather than de-
pendent on charitable donations. A visit to
one of the poppy work rooms at a veterans
hospital will convince one of the infrinsic
value of this project. Here we find men
happy at their work. Long worried hospital
hours are turned into hours of pleasant and



remunerative work. ‘I'hey laugh and sing
and flying fingers fashion thousands of pop-
pies that you and I will wear in remem-
brance. As they wourk the veterans gain a

new interest in life, one of the basic needs
in .the long process of rehabilitation.

Veterans with any form of communicable
discase are not permitted' to make poppies.
In some cases this work is given to their
wives, Special work rooms being establish-
ed outside of the hospital. The money they
carn helps keep their families together un-
il their husbands again can become wage
earners. Then too poppy work rooms are
often established outside the hospitals for
velerans who have been discharged from
hospitals and cannot do regular work.
All materials for the poppies are supplied
by the Auxiliaries who also promote the
sales. Each unit conducting the, sale of
poppies order their supply from the Natmn—
al department.

The sales are conducted entinely by vol-
unteer workers and every. pendy received
goes into direct relief for the disabled men
and dependents of the disabled or dead. The
bulk of the poppy funds remains in the
community where it is raised and is expend-
ed by local Auxiliary. Units in relief work
throughout the year and to pay the veter-
ans for their work in making thie poppies.
A small percentage of funds goes to the de-
partment and National organizations for
use in the Department: and National Rehef
and rehabilitation program.

Profits from. poppy sales are entirely
spent upon welfare relief for service men
and women and their families. Over 25,000,
000 poppies will be sold by the American
Legion Auxiliary on Saturday, May 24 by
over 125,000 volunteer workers in the Unit-
ed States who receive absolutely no com-
pensation for their work. Over $300,000 is
paid annually to needy and disabled service
men for making the poppies. Over $2,000-
000 in proceeds is devoted to the gigantic
task of rehabilitation.

. needy comrades. This plan was adopted at

A movie short will be shown at the Geﬁx

Theater in the near future so that we may!

all see our disabled veterans at work. The
Ladies of the American Legion Auxiliary
and the Veterans of Foreign Wars Auxil-
iary will be on our streets Saturday, May
24 with handfuls of poppies. to sell.-Buy one
in rememblance and wear 1t in, silent ; triblte
to America’s 7heroes

1ng

1947 marks the 26th annual Poppy day
sponsored by the Veterans of Foreign Wars
Auxiliary. National annual VFW Poppy Day
is Saturday, May 17 but it is being observ-
ed here on May 24 so that the two local
Veteran’s Auxiliaries may make - collections .
on the same day. ! |

Both organizations are working for the
same worthy cause, The care of our veter-
ans and their families.. Poppies will be sold
by volunteer workers in both organizations
who will give freely of their time that this
mighty task of rehabilitation can continue.
The VFW workers will also sell poppies in
Elgin and Kellogg the same day, Saturday,
May 24,

Over 21,000,000 silk poppies will be sold
this year by V.F.W. Auxiliaries throughout
the United States. One cent from the sale
of each poppy goes to the' support of the
VEFW national veteran orphans home at Ea-
ton Rapids, Michigan and the bulk of the
funds stays in the communities where it is
raised to pay for local veterans relief work,
to purchase materials for poppies and pay
the veterans for making them one and one-
half cents on the sale of each poppy goes
to National headquarters for aid and relief
of disabled veterans and their dependants
and for relief to veterans of national dis-|
asters.

The first sale of. poppl.es by ‘the Veterans
of Foreign Wars organization was held
prior Memorial Day in May 1922 when only
French poppies were sold. Due to difficulty
in getting the poppies the idea evolved in-
1923 ‘which resulted in the VFW '\Poppv
fashioned of silk by disabled veterans who
were paid for their work as a practical |
means of providing assistance for these,

Uhe 1923 encampment at Norfolk, Virginia.
The name “Buddy Poppy” was given to the
flower by the Veterans themselves as they
made them. The Buddy Poppy was adopted
as the Memorial Flower of the VFW at
their Nationdl Encampment in Seattle,
Washington in August 1922 following the
national sale in May 1922 and the name
Buddy Poppy was copyrighted in February
1924 granting the VFW exclusive right to
the name. Remember to “Buy a Buddy Pop-
Py and honor the dead by helping the liv-
















